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SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statatsevithin the meaning of Section 27A of the StearAct of 1933, as amended, and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as dettradopted pursuant to the Private Securitiegéafiton Reform Act of 1995. Statements that are not
purely historical may be forwa-looking. You can identify some forward-lookingetaents by the use of words such as “believes, titamates,”

“expects,” “intends” and similar expressions. Forngklooking statements involve inherent risks andautainties regarding events, conditions and
financial trends that may affect our future plafi©peration, business strategy, results of operetiand financial position. A number of importardtéas
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrfréhose included within or contemplated by suctvémd-looking statements, including, but not limited
risks relating to the uncertainty of growth in matkacceptance for our technology, our history eBks since inception, our ability to remain contjpetiin
response to new technologies, the costs to defandell as risks of losing, patents and intellethraperty rights, our customer concentration and
dependence on a limited number of customers, anedi on our future customers’ ability to develop aell products that incorporate our technologye th
uncertainty of demand for our technology in certaiarkets, the length of a product development atebse cycle, our ability to manage growth effedyi)
our dependence on key members of our managemeneaetbpment team, our remediation and detectionaiérial weaknesses in our internal control
over financial reporting, and our ability to obtaadequate capital to fund future operations, Fatiscussion of these and other factors that coultsea
actual results to differ from those contemplatethim forward-looking statements, please see “li@nRisk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual &gp
and in our publicly available filings with the Seities and Exchange Commission. Forwdodking statements reflect our analysis only athefdate of thi
Annual Report. Because actual events or resultsdifégr materially from those discussed in or inegliby forwarelooking statementsiade by us or on o
behalf, you should not place undue reliance onfanyard-looking statement. We do not undertake aasjbility to update or revise any of these factars
to announce publicly any revision to forward-loakistatements, whether as a result of new informafitture events or otherwise.




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Neonode Inc. (collectively with its subsidiariesyéferred to in this Annual Report as “Neonod&/e®, “us”, “our”, “registrant”, or “Company”)
develops and licenses user interfaces and optifratéd touch technology. Our patented technoldfgr® multiple features including the ability tonse an
object’s size, depth, velocity, pressure, and pnityi to any type of surface. We license our mutikth technology to Original Equipment Manufacturers
(“OEMSs") and Original Design Manufacturers (“ODMsfjo incorporate it into devices that they prodand sell. OEMs and ODMs use our touch
technology in controller designed specifically far touch technology. Our technology licensing m@dlews us to focus on the development of soligion
for touchscreens and touch-enabled surfaces. Wetmanufacture products or components.

As of December 31, 2014, we had thirty-five tecloggllicense agreements with global OEMs and ODNige&n of our customers are currently
shipping products and we anticipate other customérinitiate product shipments as they compléteit final product development and release cycle
throughout 2015 and onwards. In addition, we areetitly developing prototype products and are gadan product engineering design discussions with
numerous global OEMs and ODMs who are in the pmoésgjualifying our touch technology for incorpaoatin various products. The development and
release cycle for these products typically takegasthirty-six months.

Our Company

Neonode Inc., formerly known as SBE, Inc., was ipooated in the State of Delaware on Septembe®2/.1SBES name was changed to Neon
Inc. upon the completion of a merger on August2D®7 between SBE and the parent company of NeoABda company founded in February 2004 and
incorporated in Sweden. As a result of the mertperpusiness and operations of Neonode AB becaengritmary business and operations of Neonode Inc.
Our principal executive office is located in Stookh, Sweden. Our office in the United States isted in Santa Clara, California.




In 2008, we established a subsidiary Neonode Tdabies AB to develop and license touchscreen tddgyoln 2013, we established additional
subsidiaries: Neonode Japan Inc., (Japan); Nenolbtsgface Solutions AB (Sweden); NEON Technoldgy. (U.S.); and Neonode Americas Inc. (U.S.).
In 2014, we established one additional subsididgonode Korea Ltd. (South Korea). In 2015, we hestablished one additional subsidiary as of thegfil
date of this Annual Report: Neonode Taiwan Ltd.

Our Touch Solution

We develop and license user interface and touctiisns. We offer our patented family of touch smos under the registered trademarks
MultiSensing® and zForcé . Our optical touch technology is capable of prisega full plane of light beams in free air or oy flat touch surface. Our
technology can also send light into a fluid or asglto achieve a flush design without a bezel. Bjeab touching the touch surface obstructs a poricthe
projected light beams. This small variance of digmdetected with sensitive light sensors conrebtieour touch controllers that process the ansigigals
and produce touch object coordinates.

For users, our solution provides “sense enablentbratigh touch and proximity sensing. Consumers isipee our technology in products sucl
laptop computers, all-in-one computers and staodeaimonitors running on Microsoft Windows and Geoghrome operating systems, printer products,
GPS devices, e-Readers, tablets, touch panelsifomabiles, household appliances, mobile phonearatde electronics, games and toys. In addition to
traditional screens, our technology can make anace — including water and air — touch functional.

For OEMs and ODMs, our solution offers industriasin flexibility, low power consumption, and cestective manufacturing. OEMS and
ODMs can incorporate our touch technology into deaniange of devices such as tablets and e-Readiettgers, computers, mobile phones, wearables, toys
and gaming consoles, and advanced automotive infotant systems. We also offer engineering consubigrvices to our OEM and ODM customers on a
flat rate or hourly rate basis.

Touch Technologies

There are various technologies for touchscreert@mh-enabled surfaces available in the market differing profiles, power consumption, level
of maturity, and cost:

. Optical touch technology uses light beams thabeoken, reflected by a finger or other -conductive object to detect a tou

. Capacitive touchscreens typically use one or sélagrars of transparent conductive material typgjcaldium tin oxide applied to the inn
structure of the LCD or on a glass or plastic lagefront on the LCD to sense touch activati

. Resistive touchscreens use conductive and reslatees separated by thin spa

. Acoustic pulse recognition touch technology usezgelectric transducers at positions of the sci@émrn the mechanical energy of a tol
vibration into an electronic sign:

. Surface acoustic wave touchscreens use ultras@vesthat pass over the screen.

. In-cell optical touch technology embeds photo seneoconductive sensors directly into a Liquid €& Display (“‘LCD") glass to act like a

low-resolution camera t‘se¢’ the shadow of the finge
. Dispersive signal touch technology uses sensatstict the mechanical energy in the glass occudirgto a touch.

The two dominant types of touchscreen technoloavadiable are capacitive and resistive. A capaeitouchscreen reacts to a conductive object by
sensing the difference in capacitance between te@saon the sensor surface or between the fingethenground. Capacitive touchscreens are suithble
the user has unimpeded contact between the fimgethe screen. A resistive touchscreen is pressmsitive. Resistive touchscreens are suitable for
detailed work and for selection of particular spota screen. Resistive technology is not usefusfiggeping gestures or motion, such as zoomingdroat

Optical Touch Advantages

Our optical technology projects light across thectosurface or detection area without any needragxtra physical layer to be added. It can be
used with thick gloves or any other object. Ouliggttouch technology also can be fully waterprolod@d will provide touch functionality even wheriyu
submerged. In addition to traditional touch intéiaton the screen, our optional touch technolagyloe used in the free space around the screenduqi
using proximity sensing.




We believe our optical touch technology has a nurobkey advantages over other touch screen teobres:

Our optical technology does not require additidagérs that may dilute the image quality of thepthy or cause unwanted reflections and
glare making reading the display difficL

Our optical technology is more responsive than citipa sensor technology and, as a result, is quiekd less prone to misread;

Our optical technology requires no downward pressurthe touch surface in order to select or mtwras on the touch surface in stark
contrast to resistive touch scree

Our optical technology is cost-efficient due to tbeer cost of materials and simple and high yrahufacturing process;

Our optical technology enables multiple methodmpfit, such as continuous tracking of multiple &rgy taps to hit keys, sweeps to zoom in
or out, and gestures to write text or symbols diyean the touch surfact

Our optical technology works in all climates andiesnments and does not require any special prigzefriom the object used; a

Our optical technology does not require any blgzce or borders on the sides of the display andheaefore enable a slimmer des
around a display leading to smaller and betteritapkievices

Unlike competing technologies, our optical touctesa technology does not require glass. The remaithe glass reduces glare, enhances image
clarity, optimizes power consumption, lightens vejgnd lowers cost. In contrast, other touch teldgies such as capacitive and resistive require a
physical touch sensor layer, typically covering digplay, in order to detect touches. Layering nedbgy required to activate the capacitive andstes
sensors can be very costly. Glass or plastic laysed in capacitive touch may also increase thédn of the touch surface giving a less enjoydibés.

Controller Chips

We develop, but do not produce controller chipstber components. Under our licensing model, ouM@Bd ODM customers use customized
single optical controller chips developed in coliedtion with Texas Instruments designed specifjdalt our optical touch technology. These contmolle
chips can only be sold to customers who have axt#oby license agreement with Neonode.

The NN1001, the first generation optical controibip, was developed pursuant to an Analog Devieeelbpment Agreement between Neonode
and Texas Instruments entered into on Februar@#] 2nd effective as of January 24, 2010. The NN1@gan shipping to customers in May 2012.

The NN1002, the second generation optical controtép, was developed pursuant to an Analog Debieeelopment Agreement between
Neonode and Texas Instruments entered into on &priP013 effective December 6, 2012. The NN10@2iisently in development and has not b
released to mass production. Through December®4,2ve had made no payments under the NN1002ragree

The NN1003 is the third generation controller céuiyg is currently in development with a major glotdaip component supplier. The NN1003 is
designed for large screen applications.

The NN1001, NN1002, and NN1003 controller chipsdasigned to simplify integration, reduce cost, erttlease performance.

The NN1001 and NN1002 have scanning speeds of #aqtency down to 1ms).
The NN1002 is designed to support advanced poweageament and enables touch detection even whetethee is in sleep or off mode.
The NN1002 is designed to consume less than 1mAGHz.




. The NN1002 and NN1003 are designed to be synctedriztouch enabled larger areas by using multipies.
. The NN1002 and NN1003 are designed to support samebus scanning leading to significantly highensing speeds and reduced power
consumption

Our Market
E-Readers and Tablets

Our touch technology is widely used in e-Readetstahlets. Since 2011, nearly 18 million e-Readel tablet units have been shipped containing
our touch technology by customers such as AmazohpKBarnes & Noble, Sony and Deutsche Telekomy Sitontinued its e-Reader products in 2014
and is no longer manufacturing or shipping any aedRes. However, Sony is currently shipping a 18cB iwriting tablet named “Digital Paper” that
integrates our technology. Customers such as LegdEnterprises, Oregon Scientific and LG are shigpablets with our technology integrated to enkanc
the process of children’s learnings.

Printers and Office Equipment

Photo printers and printers combining printer/seaitiax functions typically require feature-rich nobsrand settings to deliver the best user
experience, and OEMs increasingly are replacinghargical buttons with touchscreen displays. We Isigeed agreements with the top three global lee
printers and office equipment OEMs including Hewlkdickard (“HP”). HP started shipping the first semer printer with our touch technology integrated
in early 2014 and today they have more than twprityter models on the market using our technol@gher customers currently in development phase are
expected to have printers and office equipmentyréadretail rollouts throughout 2016.

Computers and Monitors

Our touch technology is suitable for laptops, aibne computers and stand-alone monitors. Our ey provides for a state of the art modern
looking industrial design with no bezels and atileslge to edge design optimized for the new geinaraf LCD panels with only a few millimeters ofauk
frame. Because it does not require any expensigdatile glass in front of the LCD to carry theith sensors, our touch solution can result in a 60%
more reduction in the cost to implement touch fiomatlity and in a glare free product with up to tkitngrams less weight. In addition, our technology
scales over different display sizes and can hatuteed displays. We have technology license agratvand are in product design phase with tier one
computer and monitor OEMs that we expect will begfiipping products in the second half of 2015. \Weadso in the process of attaining Microsoft
Windows 10 certification on top of our already rigeel Windows 8.1 certification.

Automotive

Touch interface displays are becoming standardpeggmt in vehicles. Our touch technology is ablutfill stringent requirements to operate in an
automotive environment, including electrical, temgtere, moisture and vibration standards. Unlikegeting technologies such as resistive and prajecte
capacitive, our optical touch solutions does nqtine an additional layer to be placed in frontha screen which otherwise would reduce the retiyabi
the screen and causes glare and reflections. Isettend quarter of 2013, Volvo began offering &leenabled Human Machine Interfaces (“HMI”)
infotainment system as a dealer installed afteretandtrofit product that uses our touch technoldgyhe fourth quarter of 2013, a leading Brazilars
manufacturer, Marcopolo S.A., launched its Torimei&s incorporating our touch technology. In therfio quarter 2014, Volvo launched their new XC-90
incorporating a 9.7 inch display using our touathtelogy. In the fourth quarter 2014, the new MG &5 launched also using our technology. We believe
that our optical touch solutions are positionechttke inroads in the automotive market by providinghter, more readable displays, with a full ofie
temperature range that are easily usable whileingagtoves. We are currently engaged with sevdodla automotive OEMs and their tier one suppliers
developing automotive HMI, infotainment and innavatentry systems. These projects typically have ldevelopment cycles that can take as long as four
to five years before any meaningful production krehse fee generation will occur.
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Mobile Phones, Wearables and Accessories, Games

Our touch and proximity sensor technology platféommobile phones can be integrated in the phorie aphone mobile phone protective case
that enables an interaction with applications mdy @n the screen but also in the space aroundibade the mobile phone. We also believe our touch
technology is suitable for smart watches, fitnessaks, activity trackers, medical monitors, multition keyboards and GPS tracking devices, gasanitg
toy products. These market segments benefit frontaach solutions low power consumption and bilhwdterial, geometrical design freedom (circular
touch) and independence from a brittle, glossyyhead costly glass.

Home Electronics

Mechanical buttons, dials and membrane switchésrgistly control machines in the kitchen and layyngdom. New designs can make use of our
touch technology with or without an underlying dégp For example, touch sensitive buttons can new pre-printed array on metal, glass or any other
material providing for easy cleaning and extremehg life without the failures and wear-out meclsams found in mechanical buttons, switches and.dials
A touch panel can include illumination without amlay. A feature-rich device, like a high-end drgiesign, can be streamlined and user friendly with
touch-enabled display or interaction surface. Weeimudiscussions with OEMs in the home electroniesket who are designing touch enabled products
such as kitchen fans and stovetops, ovens andriaumoim washers and dryers.

Distribution, Sales and Marketing

We consider OEMs and ODMs to be our primary custsm@EMs and ODMs determine the design requirenrardamake the overall decision
regarding the use of our user interface and toeichrology in their products. The use and pricingwfuser interface and touch technology are gedehy
a technology licensing agreement.

Our sales staff solicits prospective customersrandives substantial technical assistance and sufjppm our internal engineering resources
because of the highly technical nature of our pebdolutions. We expect that sales will frequengigult from our sales efforts that involve execeftsenior
management, design engineers, and our sales pelsotanacting with our potential customers’ demisimakers throughout the product development and
order process.

Our sales are normally negotiated and executed$n Dollars.

Our sales force and marketing operations are managfeof our office in Stockholm, Sweden. Our caotreales force is comprised of sales offices
located in the U.S., Sweden, South Korea, TaiwahJapan.

Technology Agreements

As of December 31, 2014, we have entered intoytfive technology license agreements comparedittyithree and twenty-four license
agreements as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, tesgbhgcThe products related to these license agess include e-Readers, tablets, mobile phones,
commercial and consumer printers, automotive casstlome appliances, toys and games and GPS devices

We are dependent on a limited number of OEM and GiDBtomers and the loss of any one of these cussarnald have a material adverse ef
on our future revenue stream. In the short termamtipate that we remain dependent on a limitedhler of customers for substantially all of ouufet
revenues. Failure to anticipate or respond adelyuatéechnological developments in our industttyaigges in customer or supplier requirements orggsn
in regulatory requirements or industry standardsny significant delays in the development oradtrction of products or services could have a rater
adverse effect on our business, operating resattsash flows.

Our customers are located in the United Statesnoéidica (“U.S.”), Europe and Asia.

As of December 31, 2014 three customers represaptaximately 87% of the Company’s consolidatezbants receivable.




As of December 31, 2013 two customers represemerimately 56% of the Company’s consolidated aot®receivable.

Our net revenues for the year ended December 34, ®6re earned from thirty-two customers. Customérs accounted for 10% or more of our
net revenues during the year ended December 34, &@las follows.

. Hewlett-Packard Company — 24%
. KOBO Inc. — 10%

. Leap Frog Enterprises Inc. — 11%
. Sony Corporation — 10%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t8 earned from twentyine customers. Customers who accounted for 10&tooe of our ne
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2@1&sdollows.

. KOBO Inc. — 28%

. Netronix Inc. — 18%

. Leap Frog Enterprises Inc. — 12%
. Sony Corporation — 11%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t2 @arned from twenty customers. Customers whauated for 10% or more of our net
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2@l@sabllows:

. Amazon.com Inc. — 32%
. KOBO Inc. — 26%
. Sony Corporation — 17%

Geographical Data

The following table presents our net revenues lgogphic region as a percentage of total reverurehié years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012

u.S. 60% 51% 73%
Japar 11% 12% 18%
China 11% 9% 5%
Taiwan 8% 18% 1%
Soutt-Korea 4% -- --

Italy 3% -- -

Sweder 1% 9% 1%
Other 2% 1% 1%
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%

The following table presents our total assets lmggaphic region for the years ended December 3th@usands):

2014 2013 2012
u.s. $ 7,31 $ 10,28( $ 10,99(
Sweder 1,231 1,161 1,17¢
Asia 57 30 -
Total $ 8,60z $ 11,47.  $ 12,16¢

Competition

The touch technologies market is intensely comigetiand characterized by rapidly changing technglegolving standards and new product
releases by our competitors. Implementation ostes touch technologies in consumer devices i®eaptially declining due to limitations regarding
sweep gestures, limitations on industrial desiga, the negative impact on screen clarity due to éiverlays.




Neonode is one of few companies that offer optimath technology. Our major competition are comgsuiffering projected capacitive (“PCAP”)
technologies. PCAP is a prevalent standard in reskzihd tablets offering finger based touch andsmi design flexibility. PCAP has many suppliers
competing to offer the same solution with pricenigea major differentiation point. OEMs regularlyaciye PCAP suppliers in order to maintain the best

pricing.

Our competitors, and the interface technology wiebe they offer, include the following:

Company Technology

Synaptics Capacitive; l-cell
ATMEL Capacitive; Icell
Cypress Capacitive; l-cell
Maxim Capacitive; I-cell

Tyco Electronics
Touch Internatione

Capacitive; Resistive; Surface acoustic w
Resistive; Capacitiv

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of intellectual properys and contractual provisions to establish anteptdhe proprietary rights in our technology.

The number of our issued and pending patents aedisdiled in each jurisdiction as of December3&114 is set forth in the following table:

Jurisdiction No. of Issued Paten No. of Patents Pendir
United State: 28 32
Europe 2 13
Japar 6 10
China 4 12
South Koree 3 8
Canade 5 11
Australia 7 12
Singapore 4 13
Patent Convention Treaty Not Applicable 6
Total: 59 117

Our patents cover six main categories: user integaoptics, controller integrated circuits, drsjenechanics and applications. The following table

groups our patents into these six categories:

Patents Ul Optics ASICs Drivers Mechanica Applications Total

Issuec 11 16 2 9 2 19 58
Pending 22 60 2 6 8 19 117
Total 33 76 4 15 1C 38 17€

Our user interface software may also be protecyezbpyright laws in most countries, including Swe@ead the European Union, which do not

grant patent protection for the software itselthié software is deemed new and original. Protaatan be claimed from the date of creation.

Research and Development

In fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, we spent 8iflltbn, $7.2 million and $5.7 million, respectiyelon research and development activities. Our

research and development is predominantly in-hdustes also done in collaboration with externattipars and specialists.
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Employees

On December 31, 2014, we had fifty-two employeasealaven part-time or full-time consultants. Thesze a total of seven employees in our
general and administrative group, seven in ourssatel marketing group and thirty-eight in our eegiting group. We have employees located in the U.S.
Sweden, Israel and Japan. None of our employeagpresented by a labor union. We have experienoedork stoppages. We believe our employee
relations are positive.

Additional Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendhed'Exchange Act”) and we file or furnish
reports, proxy statements, and other informatidh tie Securities and Exchange Commission (“SETie SEC maintains an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and dtifermation regarding issuers that file electrafiic with the SEC at www.sec.gov. The reports athabc
information filed by us with the SEC are availafske of charge on the SEC’s website. The public neagl and copy any materials we file with the SEC a
the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F StreetWHShington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Our website is www.neonode.carthrough our website, we make available free afrgh all of our filings with the SEC, including camnual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form,Gand current reports on Form 8-K as well as F8riorm 4, and Form 5 reports for the Company’s
directors, officers, and principal stockholdergether with amendments to those reports filed ori$hed pursuant to Sections 13(a), 15(d), or euthe
Exchange Act. These reports are available as soosaaonably practicable after their electronindilor furnishing with the SEC. Our website alscludes
corporate governance information, such as our @b@isiness Conduct (including Code of Ethics far Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial
Officers) and Board Committee Charters. We ardnatiding the information contained on our websisepart of, nor incorporating it by reference irhis
Annual Report.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves a hagitak of risk. Before deciding to purchase, hotdsedl our common stock, you should cons
carefully the risks described below in additiorthe cautionary statements and risks described élsemand the other information contained in thisAal
Report and in our other filings with the SEC, imthg subsequent reports on FormsQ and 8-K. The risks and uncertainties describeldw are not the
only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertamtiot presently known to us or that we currentlgrd immaterial may also impair our business
operations. If any of these known or unknown réskisncertainties actually occurs, our businessafficial condition, results of operations or cashiffo
could be seriously harmed. This could cause thdiriaprice of our common stock to decline, resglima loss of all or part of your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business
We are dependent on a limited number of customers.

Our net revenues for the year ended December 34, ®6re earned from thirty-two customers. During ykear ended December 31, 2014, four
customers represented approximately 55% of ourdatiolated net revenues.

Our customer concentration may change significantlyn period-to-period depending on a customerglpct cycle and changes in our industry.
The loss of a major customer, a reduction in nezmaes of a major customer for any reason, oaréaof a major customer to fulfill its financiat other
obligations due to us could have a material adveifeet on our business, financial condition, amidife revenue stream.

We are dependent on the ability of our customerslésign, manufacture and sell their products thatbrporate our touch technology,
particularly in markets other than -Readers and tablets.

We generate revenue through technology licensingesgents with companies which must be successfidsigning, manufacturing and selling
their products that incorporate our touch technpldde majority of our license fees earned in 2@D4,3 and 2012 were from customer shipments of e-
Reader and tablet products. We expect that custshigments of e-Readers and tablet products wdlime in the future. If we are unable to expand our
licenses beyond e-Readers and tablets or if otogss are not able to design, manufacture ottsall products, or are delayed in producing their
products, our revenues, profitability, and liquydias well as our brand image, may be adversebcttl.
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The length of a customer’s product development aetbase cycle depends on many factors outside ofomntrol and could cause us to incur
significant expenses without offsetting revenuesrevenues that vary significantly from quarter guarter.

The development and release cycle for customeruptsds lengthy and unpredictable. Our customdenaindertake significant evaluation and
design in the qualification of our products, whadntributes to a lengthy product release cycleugtamer’s decision to purchase our technology often
requires a lengthy approval process undertakemebgral decision makers at the customer. The typicaluct development and release cycle is sixittyth
six months with new customers while existing custoiead times are typically six to nine months. @kgelopment and release cycle may be longer in
some cases, particularly for automotive vehicledpobs. There is no assurance that a customer daptzour technology after the evaluation or design
phase. The lengthy and variable development aedselcycle for products may also have a negatigadtron the timing of our revenues, causing our
revenues and results of operations to vary sigmifiy from quarter to quarter.

If we fail to develop and introduce new touch teaiingy successfully and in a cost effective and tiynmanner, we will not be able to compete
effectively and our ability to generate revenuedlwuffer .

We operate in a highly competitive, rapidly evotyienvironment, and our success depends on outyabildevelop and introduce new touch
technology that our customers and end users chiodag. If we are unsuccessful at developing navehaechnology that are appealing to our customers
and end users with acceptable functionality, quatitices and terms, we will not be able to compeéfectively and our ability to generate revenuds w
suffer. The development of new touch technologyery difficult and requires high levels of innovatiand competence. The development process is also
lengthy and costly. If we fail to anticipate ourdamsers’ needs or technological trends accuratelfywee are unable to complete development in & cos
effective and timely fashion, we will be unabldritroduce new touch technology into the marketumcessfully compete with other providers. As we
introduce new or enhanced touch technology or rateghew touch technology into new or existing aonr products, we face risks including, among other
things, disruption in customers’ ordering patteinability to deliver new touch technology to meastomers’ demand, possible product and technology
defects, and potentially unfamiliar sales and supgravironments. Premature announcements or Idakevo products, features, or technologies may
exacerbate some of these risks. Our failure to galtize transition to newer touch technology oritibegration of newer technology into new or exigtin
customer products could adversely affect our bgsinesults of operations, and financial condition.

We are dependent on Texas Instruments as a composapplier for our technology.

Our business operates upon a technology licensodemWe do not manufacture products or compongmder our licensing model, OEMs and
ODMs manufacture or contract to manufacture coletr@hips containing our touch technology. As d@araktive to sourcing controller chips, our custos
may opt to use customized NN1001 and NN1002 opticatroller chips developed in collaboration withx@s Instruments designed specifically for our
optical touch technology. These controller chips oaly be sold to customers who have a technoliogyn$e agreement with us. As part of their product
development process, our customers must qualifghiipcomponents used in our products. If the abetrchips provided by Texas Instruments expes
quality control problems, our technology may begdadified by one or more of our customers. Our depace on Texas Instruments to supply controller
chips with our touch technology exposes us to abrrrof risks including their inability to obtain adequate supply of components, the failure to meet
customer requirements, or their failure to remaibusiness or adjust to market conditions. If argtemers are unable to obtain controller chips with
touch technology, we may not be able to meet demahidh could have a material adverse effect onbmsiness, financial condition, results of operaio
and cash flows.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlysaa result of a variety of factors, many of whichesoutside of our control.

As a result of our limited operating history and tiature of the markets in which we compete,éisemely difficult for us to forecast accurately.
We base our current and future expense levelsljaogeour investment plans and estimates of fuewents, although certain of our expense levelstar,
large extent, fixed. We may be unable to adjushdimg in a timely manner to compensate for any peeted revenue shortfall. Accordingly, any
significant shortfall in revenues relative to olammed expenditures would have an immediate adwetfset on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.
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In addition, we are subject to the following fastceamong others, that may negatively affect andecfluctuations in our operating results:

. the announcement or introduction of new productgcinologies by our competitors;

. our ability to upgrade and develop our infrastroetio accommodate growth;

. our ability to attract and retain key personned itimely and cost effective manner;

. technical difficulties;

. the amount and timing of operating costs and chpipenditures relating to the expansion of ouiiess, operations, and infrastructure;

. general economic conditions as well as economiditions specific to the touchscreen industry.

Further, as a strategic response to changes tothpetitive environment, we may from time to timaka certain pricing, service, or marketing
decisions that could have a material and advefsetafn our business, results of operations, amhftial condition. Due to the foregoing factors; ou
revenues and operating results are and will rewmiifficult to forecast.

We have had a history of losses and may requireitiiglal capital to fund our operations, which cagit may not be available on commercially
attractive terms or at all.

We have experienced substantial net losses infesaeth period since our inception. These net losssslted from a lack of substantial revenues
and the significant costs incurred in the developnaad acceptance of our technology. We may iruthege require sources of capital in addition tetcan
hand to continue operations and to implement oainags plan. We project that we have sufficientiticassets to continue operating for at least & n
twelve months. However, if our operations do natdmee cash flow positive, we may be forced to seetlitline facilities from financial institutiongquity
investments, or debt arrangements. No assuranndsecgiven that we will be successful in obtairsagh additional financing on reasonable termst afl.
If adequate funds are not available when needextoeptable terms, or at all, we may be unable eégaately fund our business plan, which could have a
negative effect on our business, results of opmratiand financial condition.

We must significantly enhance our sales and techogy} development organizations.

We will need to improve the effectiveness and biteadl our sales efforts in order to increase maakedreness and sales of our technology,
especially as we expand into new market segmentapétition for qualified sales personnel is interasa we may not be able to hire the kind and numbe
of sales personnel we are targeting. Likewise gffarts to improve and refine our technology regukilled engineers and programmers. Competition fo
professionals capable of expanding our researcldanelopment efforts is intense due to the limitachber of people available with the necessary feal
skills. If we are unable to identify, hire, or rietgualified sales, marketing, and technical pemsrour ability to achieve future revenue may teeasely
affected.

We will need to increase the size of our organieatiand we may be unable to manage our growth effesty.

Our failure to manage growth effectively could havmaterial and adverse effect on our businessltsesf operations and financial condition. We
anticipate that expansion of our organization iéirequired to address internal growth to handknbing and research activities. This expansionplrege
a significant strain on management, operational,famancial resources. To manage the expected grofudur operations and personnel, we must both
improve our existing operational and financial eys$, procedures, and controls, and implement netemss, procedures, and controls. We must also
expand our finance, administrative, and operatitaf. Our current personnel, systems, procedarascontrols may not adequately support future
operations. Management may be unable to hire,, treiain, motivate, and manage the necessary pekan to identify, manage and exploit existinglan
potential strategic relationships and market opputies .

13




We may make acquisitions and strategic investmehg are dilutive to existing shareholders, resulj in unanticipated accounting charges or
otherwise adversely affect our results of operaton

We may decide to grow our business through busic@shinations or other acquisitions of businesgexjucts or technologies that allow us to
complement our existing touch technology offeriregand our market coverage, increase our workfmremhance our technological capabilities. If we
make any future acquisitions, we could issue stbakwould dilute our shareholders’ percentage aship or we may incur substantial debt, reduce our
cash reserves and/or assume contingent liabilfi@gher, acquisitions and strategic investmentg ragult in material charges, adverse tax consempsen
substantial depreciation, deferred compensatiorgelsain-process research and development changeshe amortization of amounts related to deferred
compensation and identifiable purchased intangibiets or impairment of goodwill. Any of these dongatively impact our results of operations.

We are dependent on the services of our key persbnn

Our senior management team consists of two exexafficers. Our Chief Executive Officer is one bétfounders of our Company. The unplan
loss of the services of any member of managemeriti ¢@ve a materially adverse effect on our openatand future prospects.

Our revenues and growth are dependent on licensiegs from our intellectual property.

Our success depends in large part on our propyitgahnology and other intellectual property right&e rely on a combination of patents,
copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets, confalégptprovisions, and licensing arrangements talglgsh and protect our proprietary rights. Our
intellectual property, particularly our patents,ymet provide us with a significant competitive adtage. If we fail to protect or to enforce oueltgctual
property rights successfully, our competitive gositcould suffer, which could harm our results pémtions. Our pending patent applications for
registration may not be allowed, or others maylehgk the validity or scope of our patents. Evesuif patents registrations are issued and mairttaine
these patents may not be of adequate scope orittenas or may be held invalid and unenforcealg@irgst third parties. We may need to expend sicpnift
resources to secure and protect our intellectugdgaty. The loss of intellectual property rightsynaaversely impact our ability to generate reverares
expand our business.

If third parties infringe upon our intellectual prperty, we may expend significant resources enforciur rights or suffer competitive injury.

Existing laws, contractual provisions and remediésrd only limited protection for our intellectuptoperty. We may be required to spend
significant resources to monitor and police ouelisttual property rights. Effective policing oftlunauthorized use of our technology or intelldctua
property is difficult and litigation may be necessin the future to enforce our intellectual prdyeaights. Intellectual property litigation is notly
expensive, but time-consuming, regardless of thétsnaf any claim, and could divert attention of smanagement from operating the business. Inteléct
property lawsuits are subject to inherent uncetitssrdue to, among other things, the complexittheftechnical issues involved, and we cannot aggure
that we will be successful in asserting our intgli@l property rights. Attempts may be made to capseverse engineer aspects of our technology or t
obtain and use information that we regard as petgoy. We may not be able to detect infringemedtrany lose competitive position in the market befor
they do so. In addition, competitors may desigruadoour technology or develop competing technokgi$e cannot assure you that we will be able to
protect our proprietary rights against unauthorited! party copying or use. The unauthorized Udssuo technology or of our proprietary informatibp
competitors could have an adverse effect on olityatn sell our technology.

The laws of foreign countries may not provide proten of our intellectual property rights to the sa extent as the laws of the United States,
which may make it more difficult for us to proteour intellectual property.

As part of our business strategy, we target custem@ued relationships with suppliers and originalipment manufacturers in countries with large
populations and propensities for adopting new teldgies. However, many of these countries do ndtegs misappropriation of intellectual property nor
deter others from developing similar, competindtertogies or intellectual property. Effective prdten of patents, copyrights, trademarks, tradeetec
and other intellectual property may be unavailablémited in some foreign countries. In particuyltre laws of some foreign countries in which we do
business may not protect our intellectual propagiyts to the same extent as the laws of the UiStates. As a result, we may not be able to effelgti
prevent competitors in these regions from infriggdur intellectual property rights, which could uveé our competitive advantage and ability to comjret
those regions and negatively impact our business.
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We have an international presence in countries amadist manage currency risks.

A significant portion of our business is condudiedurrencies other than the U.S. dollar (the quyein which our consolidated financial
statements are reported), primarily the SwedismKrand, to a lesser extent, the Euro, JapanesanteKorean Won. For the year ended December 31,
2014, our revenues from the U.S., Asia, and Euvegre 60%, 35%, and 5% respectively. We incur aifsoagmt portion of our expenses in Swedish Krona,
including a significant portion of our research aledelopment expenses and a substantial portionrafeneral and administrative expenses. As atresul
appreciation of the value of the Swedish Kronatiegao the other currencies, particularly the W8llar, could adversely affect operating resie do
not currently undertake hedging transactions t@cowur currency exposure, but we may choose toeéhagiprtion of our currency exposure in the fuase
it deems appropriate.

If we are unable to remediate and detect materi@aknesses in our internal control, our financial pert and our Company may be adversely
affected.

As discussed in “Part Il—Item 9A—Controls and Prho@s,” our management has concluded that we dilav@ adequate controls designed and
in place for our quarterly and annual financiakel@rocesses relating to intercompany adjustmadtaecounting for complex transactions. Although th
control deficiency did not result in a material ste&gement in the consolidated financial statemevishave concluded that material weaknesses exigtri
internal control over financial reporting. We aterently working to remediate the material weakees$Ve cannot be sure when we will successfully
remediate the material weaknesses or whether caapeg controls will be effective before then ieyenting or detecting material errors. The reméatiat
may require substantial time and resources to sstdéy implement. Moreover, these material weakessand the financial statement errors we havént
the past or may have in the future could causesiovs, creditors, distributors, customers, ratiggreies, regulators and others to lose confidentieei
effectiveness of our internal controls and the eacyiof our financial statements and other inforamatall of which could have a material adverseastpon
our business, results of operations and financiatlition.

Risks Related to Owning Our Stock

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and tHeelaware General Corporation Law contain provisisithat could delay or prevent a change
in control.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to isspeai1,000,000 shares of preferred stock and ®rihéte the price, rights, preferences and
privileges of those shares without any further \ataction by the stockholders. The rights of thillars of common stock will be subject to, and rhay
materially adversely affected by, the rights of lledders of any preferred stock that may be issndlde future. The issuance of preferred stock dbalve
the effect of making it more difficult for a thigghrty to acquire a majority of our outstanding mgtstock. Furthermore, certain other provisionsuwof
certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have d¢fffect of delaying or preventing changes in adrdr management, which could adversely affect the
market price of our common stock. In addition, we subject to the provisions of Section 203 offleéaware General Corporation Law, an anti-takeover
law.

Our stock price has been volatile, and your investmin our common stock could suffer a decline ialue.

There has been significant volatility in the manggte and trading volume of equity securities, abhis unrelated to the financial performance of
the companies issuing the securities. These br@akanfluctuations may negatively affect the magk@te of our common stock. You may not be able to
resell your shares at or above the price you pathfise shares due to fluctuations in the markeemf our common stock caused by changes in our
operating performance or prospects, and otherr&cto

Some factors that may have a significant effeabwncommon stock market price include:

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults or future prospec
. our announcements or our competi’ announcements of new technolo
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. the public’s reaction to our press releases, dwgrghublic announcements, and our filings withSiEC;
. strategic actions by us or our competitors, suchcasisitions or restructurings;

. new laws or regulations or new interpretationsxi$téng laws or regulations applicable to our bess
. changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretations or principles;

. changes in our growth rates or our compet growth rates

. developments regarding our patents or proprieights or those of our competito
. our inability to raise additional capital as neec

. concern as to the efficacy of our technolc

. changes in financial markets or general economiclitions;

. sales of common stock by us or members of our managt team; and

. changes in stock market analyst recommendatioparings estimates regarding our common stockr otfraparable companies, or our
industry generally

Future sales of our common stock by our stockholsl@ould negatively affect our stock price.

During 2011 and 2013, officers and directors of iNete sold shares of our common stock in publicrivifs. In May 2014, Neonode sold to an
institutional investor 2,500,000 shares of comntoglsand a warrant that may be exercised by Novethe?015 to purchase an additional 2,500,000
shares of our common stock at an exercise pri§éd @0 per share. The common stock and shares lesuain exercise of the warrant from the May 2014
offering can be resold pursuant to a registrattatesnent that we filed which became effective ineJa014. Sales of a substantial number of sharesrof
common stock in the public market by insiders ogédastockholders, or the perception that theses salght occur, could depress the market price of ou
common stock and could impair our ability to ratsgital through the sale of additional equity séias.

Future sales of our common stock by us could adedysaffect its price, and our future capital-raisgactivities could involve the issuance of
equity securities, which would dilute your investnieand could result in a decline in the trading me of our common stock.

Our long-term success is dependent on us obtamiffigient capital to fund our operations and teelep our touch technology, and bringing our
technology to the worldwide market to obtain sufit sales volume to be profitable. We may selusées in the public or private equity marketsiifd
when conditions are favorable, even if we do neehen immediate need for additional capital at tina¢. Sales of substantial amounts of common st
the perception that such sales could occur, calldraely affect the prevailing market price of oammon stock and our ability to raise capital. Waym
issue additional common stock in future financirapsactions or as incentive compensation for oacative management and other key personnel,
consultants and advisors. Issuing any equity seesifivould be dilutive to the equity interests esgmted by our then-outstanding shares of comnoai.st
The market price for our common stock could de@easthe market takes into account the dilutivece®f any of these issuances. Furthermore, we may
enter into financing transactions at prices thptesent a substantial discount to the market fi@air common stock. A negative reaction by investnd
securities analysts to any discounted sale of quityesecurities could result in a decline in tragtng price of our common stock.

If securities analysts do not publish research disecurities analysts or other third parties putiisnaccurate or unfavorable research about us,
the price of our common stock could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will retygart on the research and reports that secuaitiakysts and other third parties choose to
publish about us. We do not control these anatystgher third parties. The price of our commorcktoould decline if one or more securities analysts
downgrade our common stock or if one or more searanalysts or other third parties publish inaatior unfavorable research about us or cease
publishing reports about us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease 3,185 square feet of office space loat2850 Mission College Blvd, Suite 190, Santa &1&A 95054 USA. The annual payment for
this space equates to approximately $86,000 per Ye& lease is valid through July 31, 2015. Weearrrently reviewing alternative office space loma
nearby our current location.

Our subsidiary Neonode Technologies AB leases 6&R@re feet of office space located at Storga8®, Stockholm, Sweden. The anr
payment for this space is approximately $443,000year including property tax (excluding VAT). THisase is valid through November 30, 2017.
lease can be extended on a yearly basis.

Our subsidiary Neonode Japan K.K. leases 430 sdaateof office space located at 608 Bureau Shiwagd-1-6 Konan, Minato-ku, 10837t
Tokyo, Japan. This lease is valid through Octolde?B16. The annual payment for this space eqt@atgsproximately $28,000 per year.

Our subsidiary Neonode Korea Ltd. entered intcaadeagreement located at B-1807, Daesung D-PdBs15Seoul , South Korea in January,
2015. This lease is valid through February 13, 20he annual payment for this space equates t@=aippately $24,000 per year.

We believe our existing facilities are in good citiot and suitable for the conduct of our business.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently involved in any material legaiceedings. However, from time to time, we magonee subject to legal proceedings, claims,
and litigation arising in the ordinary course oSlmess, including, but not limited to, employeestomer and vendor disputes.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Madader the symbol NEON. Shares of our commorkstommenced trading on the
NASDAQ Stock Market on May 1, 2012. Set forth belare the high and low sales prices for our comntocksfor the quarterly periods indicate

Fiscal Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C  December 31
Fiscal 201«
High $ 780 $ 6.2C $ 35C % 3.4¢
Low $ 55 $ 244 $ 194 % 1.7z
Fiscal 201z
High $ 6.3¢ $ 6.21 $ 8.8/ $ 6.82
Low $ 44¢ $ 5.0z % 7t % 4.9¢€
Holders

As of March 9, 2015, there were approximately ltbg¢kholders of record of our common stock. We esténthat there were approximately 5,400
stockholders as of February 23, 2015 whose shages freld in “street name” by brokers and otheititgins on behalf of stockholders of record.
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Dividends

There are no restrictions on our ability to payidiwds. It is currently the intention of the BoafdDirectors to retain all earnings, if any, foeus
our business and we do not anticipate paying casthethds in the foreseeable future. Any future dateation as to the payment of dividends will deghen
among other factors, upon our earnings, capitalirements, operating results and financial conditio

Stock Performance Graph
The graph below compares the cumulative total stedaler return on our common stock with the cumu&atbtal returns of the Russell MicroCap
index and the S&P Information Technology index. haph tracks the performance of a $100 investimemtir common stock and in each index (with the

reinvestment of all dividends) from December 31026 December 31, 2014. The stock price performamduded in this graph is not necessarily
indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL

RETURN*
Among MNeonode Inc.. the Russell MicroCap Index, and the S&P Information
$1.400 - Technology Index
$1,200 -
$1,000 -
$300 -
$600 -
$400 -
$200 - -
%0 - 1 L 1 . |
1210 1210 1211 12112 1213 12114
—Neonode Inc. —RuUssell MicroCap - S&P Information Technology

5100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock orindex, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright® 2015 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14
Neonode Inc. 100.0( 349.5( 950.0( 972.0( 1264.0( 676.0(
Russell MicroCap 100.0( 128.8¢ 116.9: 140.0: 203.9( 211.3¢
S&P Information Technology 100.0( 110.1¢ 112.8¢ 129.57 166.4: 199.8¢

The stock performance graph above shall not be ddéntorporated by reference into any filing byunsler the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 193dresnded, except to the extent that we specifizaltyrporate such information by reference, andlisha
not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table of selected financial inforn@tishould be read in conjunction with our consdéddinancial statements and related notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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As of or for the Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share d

Financial Results:

Total net revenue $ 474C $ 3,717 $ 7137 $ 6,067 $ 44C
Net loss (14,239 (13,080 (9,28) (17,145 (31,626
Per Share:

Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (0.3¢) $ 0.37) $ 0.2¢) $ 069 $ (1.79)
Weighted average number of shares outstar 39,53: 35,26¢ 33,00¢ 26,78¢ 18,29:
Financial Position:

Total asset $ 8,60 $ 11,47 $ 12,16¢ $ 16,627 $ 1,251
Total liabilities 5,332 5,127 4,06¢ 2,95¢ 11,11°¢
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with our consolidated financiatsiments and the related notes thereto
included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

Neonode develops and licenses user interfacesmidianfrared touch technology. Our patented tethgy offers multiple features including the
ability to sense an object’s size, depth, velogitgssure, and proximity to any type of surface.dffer our family of touch solutions under the name
MultiSensing. Our MultiSensing offerings are baspdn our patented technology we call zForce. WanBe our multi-touch technology to OEMs and
ODMs who incorporate it into devices that they progland sell. Our technology licensing model allows$o focus on the development of solutions for
touchscreens and touch-enabled surfaces. We duoaraifacture products or components.

As of December 31, 2014, we had thirty-five tecloggllicense agreements with global OEMs and ODNhés Tompares with thirty-three and
twenty-four technology license agreements as oebdxer 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. During tre ¥nded December 31, 2014, we had sixteen
customers using our touch technology in produaswrere being shipped to customers. In 2014, weived license fees from customers such as HP
(printers), Leap Frog and Oregon Scientific (chalis tablets) and Volvo (after-market installeddodor their automobile infotainment systems).

The majority of our license fees earned in 2014,38nd 2012 were from customer shipments of e-Reattktablets and printer products. We
expect license fees earned from customer shipnoéetfkeaders and tablets to decrease as a pereaftigal revenue as other customer products are
introduced to the market. In the fourth quarte@12, Amazon discontinued shipping a Kindle e-Readaduct that incorporated our touch technology.
Amazon reintroduce it latest e-Reader product usimgouch technology in the fourth quarter 201dvéhue related to this product will be recorde@in
2015. We anticipate other customers will initiateduct shipments as they complete their final pebdevelopment and manufacturing cycle throughout
2015 and onwards.

Current and future drivers of the touch technologrket include laptop computers, all-in-one and jgot@r monitors running Microsoft Windows
8.1 and 10 and Google Chrome operating system#gepsj mobile phone cases, automotive, househglibapes, tablets, e-Readers, navigation and
wearables. The proliferation and mass market acceptance ahtéechnology have prompted new applications aed o existing and new offerings, thus
making the production and utilization of these medwne of the fastest growing tech segments.
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The typical product development and release cycixito thirty-six months with new customers wialesting customer lead times are typically
six to nine months. During the initial cycle, there three phases: evaluation, design, and comafigation. In the evaluation phase, prospectsiasi our
technology and may produce short runs of protoprpeucts. During the design phase, product devetoprind solution definition begins. This design
phase tends to be the longest and delays typioadlyr which may extend the term of the overall eyt the final phase, commercialization, the aneto
enters into full production mode, ships productthtomarket and we earn license revenue.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP”) and include the accounts afdwiode Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries.idtitr-company accounts and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated statements of operations, compsafeloss and cash flows for the year ended Deeefih 2012 include our accounts and tt
of our wholly owned subsidiary, Neonode Technolsgh® (Sweden).

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&0d the consolidated statements of operationspmnsive loss and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2013 include our accounts ase tbf our wholly owned subsidiaries, Neonode Teldgies AB (Sweden), Neonode Americas Inc.
(U.S.), Neonode Japan Inc. (Japan), NEON Techndlogy(U.S.) and Neno User Interface Solutions Svéden).

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&td the consolidated statements of operationspmnsive loss and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2014 include our accounts ase tbf our wholly owned subsidiaries, Neonode Teldgies AB (Sweden), Neonode Americas Inc.
(U.S.), Neonode Japan Inc. (Japan), NEON Techndlogy(U.S.), Neno User Interface Solutions AB (8&@) and Neonode Korea Ltd. (South Korea).

The accounting policies affecting our financial dition and results of operations are more fullyatiéed in Note 2 to our consolidated financial
statements. Certain of our accounting policies ireghe application of judgment by management lacimg appropriate assumptions for calculating
financial estimates, which inherently contain sategree of uncertainty. Management bases its egtinwat historical experience and various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable thleircumstances. The historical experienceaamsdmptions form the basis for making judgments
about the reported carrying values of assets abdities and the reported amounts of revenue apdreses that may not be readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estii® under different assumptions or conditions béleve the following are critical accounting padis
and related judgments and estimates used in tipatEon of our consolidated financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires making estimates andiag#tions that affect, at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, the reporteduantscof assets and liabilities, disclosure of guggnt assets and liabilities and the reported atsafn
revenue and expenses. Actual results could difen these estimates. Significant estimates inclodeare not limited to, collectability of accounts
receivable, recoverability of capitalized projeosts and long-lived assets, the valuation allowaelzsged to our deferred tax assets and the fhievaf
options and warrants issued for stock-based coragiens
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Revenue Recognition
Licensing Revenues:

We derive revenue from the licensing of internaliyveloped intellectual property (“IP”). We entetoinP licensing agreements that generally
provide licensees the right to incorporate ourdRponents in their products with terms and condithat vary by licensee. Fees under these agrégemen
may include license fees relating to our IP analtigs payable following the distribution by ourdnsees of products incorporating the licensechtgoby.
The license for our IP has standalone value andearsed by the licensee without maintenance gopiosu We follow U.S. GAAP for revenue recognition
as per unit royalty products are distributed ceriged by our customers. For technology licensmgements that do not require significant modiitcabr
customization of the underlying technology, we ggire technology license revenue when: (1) we éntera legally binding arrangement with a customer
for the license of technology; (2) the custometritigtes or licenses the products; (3) the custqmagment is deemed fixed or determinable and ffee o
contingencies or significant uncertainties; ando@l)ection is reasonably assured. Our custom@mrtéo us the quantities of products distributed o
licensed by them after the end of the reportingogestipulated in the contract, generally 30 tadé§ys after the end of the month or quarter. Effecti
October 16, 2013, we determined it was appropt@tecognize licensing revenue in the period inclvhibyalty reports are received, rather than thimge
in which the products are distributed or to whike license relates.

Explicit return rights are not offered to customdrsere were no returns through December 31, 2014.
Engineering Services:

We may sell engineering consulting services toomstomers on a flat rate or hourly rate basis. ¥éegnize revenue from these services when all
of the following conditions are met: (1) evidencgseed of an arrangement with the customer, typicansisting of a purchase order or contractp(®)
services were performed and risk of loss pass#tetoustomer; (3) we completed all of the necessarygs of the contract; (4) the amount of revemue t
which we were entitled was fixed or determinable] &) we believed it was probable that we wouldble to collect the amount due from the customer.
To the extent that one or more of these conditi@ssnot been satisfied, we defer recognition oémere. Generally, we recognize revenue as the esiiig
services stipulated under the contract are conglate accepted by our customers. Engineering ssrpierformed under a signed statement of work
(“SOW") with a customer are accounted for underadbmpleted contract method, as these SOW'’s aré¢-tdran in nature and our total contract costs are
difficult to estimate. Estimated losses on SOW gxty are recognized in full as soon as they be@yigent.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acous

Our accounts receivable are stated at net readizathie. Our policy is to maintain allowances fstiraated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. Creditsliare established through a process of reviewiadinancial history and stability of each custome
Where appropriate, we obtain credit rating repanis financial statements of the customer when uhiééang or modifying its credit limits. We regularly
evaluate the collectability of our trade receivaidéances based on a combination of factors. Wharsmer’'s account balance becomes past due, we
initiate dialogue with the customer to determine thuse. If it is determined that the customerlvélunable to meet its financial obligation, sushrathe
case of a bankruptcy filing, deterioration in thstomer’s operating results or financial positiorother material events impacting its businessragerd a
specific allowance to reduce the related receivitbthe amount we expect to recover. Should atirefffail to recover the related receivable, wd wiite-
off the account. We also record an allowance focwgtomers based on certain other factors inctuthie length of time the receivables are past dde a
historical collection experience with customers.

Projects in Process
Projects in process consist of costs incurred tdwhze completion of various projects for certaistomers. These costs are primarily comprised of
direct engineering labor costs and project-speeifigipment costs. These costs are capitalized obadance sheet as an asset and deferred untiluever
each project is recognized in accordance with evemue recognition policy.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, naetopinaulated depreciation and amortization. Depriesic@nd amortization are computed using the
straight-line method based upon estimated usefes I0f the assets as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Computer equipmer 3 years
Furniture and fixture 5 years
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Equipment purchased under capital leases is aradrtin a straight-line basis over the estimatedulifitf of the asset or the term of the lease,
whichever is shorter. Upon retirement or sale opprty and equipment, cost and accumulated defiggci@nd amortization are removed from the accounts
and any gains or losses are reflected in the cioladetl statement of operations. Maintenance arairegre charged to expense as incurred.

Long-lived Assets

We assess any impairment by estimating the futash 6ow from the associated asset in accordantterelevant accounting guidance. If the
estimated undiscounted future cash flow relatetiese assets decreases or the useful life is shioat® originally estimated, we may incur charges f
impairment of these assets. As of December 31,,20&believe there was no impairment of our longdi assets. There can be no assurance, howewer, th
market conditions will not change or sufficient derd for our products and services will continueichitould result in impairment of long-lived assiets
the future.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D") costs are expeaséadcurred. R&D costs consist mainly of persomaksited costs in addition to some
external consultancy costs such as testing, cengifgnd measurements.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We measure the cost of employee services recaivexichange for an award of equity instrumentsyiticlg share options, based on the estimated
fair value of the award on the grant date, andgeize the value as compensation expense over tiwlfiee employee is required to provide services i
exchange for the award, usually the vesting penietipf estimated forfeitures.

We account for equity instruments issued to nonleyges at their estimated fair value. The measun¢atete for the fair estimated value for the
equity instruments issued is determined at theegart (1) the date at which a commitment for parfance by the consultant or vendor is reache®)ahé
date at which the consultant or vendor’s perforredaacomplete. In the case of equity instrumerstisad to consultants, the estimated fair value®f th
equity instruments is primarily recognized over tien of the consulting agreement. The estimated/fdue of the stock-based compensation is
periodically re-measured and income or expensecisgnized during the vesting term.

When determining stockased compensation expense involving options amchnta, we determine the estimated fair value 6bop and warran
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaigthe applicable local currency, the Swedish kdhe Japanese Yen and the South-Korean
Won. The translation from Swedish Krona, Japanese of South-Korean Won to U.S. Dollars is perforrfadalance sheet accounts using current
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheetddtéor income statement accounts using a weightethge exchange rate during the period. Gains or
(losses) resulting from translation are included aeparate component of accumulated other commifeencome (loss). Gains or (losses) resultiogfr
foreign currency transactions are included in galreend administrative expenses in the accompargongolidated statements of operations and were
($37,000), ($155,000) and ($50,000) during the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctRoreign currency translation gains or (losses)
were $138,000, $6,000 and ($8,000) during the yerded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctive

Net Loss per Share

Net loss per share amounts have been computed badkd weighted-average number of shares of constumk outstanding during the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Net losshpee, assuming dilution amounts from commonksgéogiivalents, is computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common staatlpatential common stock equivalents outstandiming the period. The weighted average number
of shares of common stock and potential commorkstqaivalents used in computing the net loss paresfor years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 exclude the potential common stock equivajestshe effect would be anti-dilutive.
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Comprehensive Loss

Our comprehensive loss includes foreign currereydiation gains and losses. The cumulative amduramslation gains and losses are reflected
as a separate component of stockholders’ equityeirtonsolidated balance sheets, as accumulatedaatimprehensive income.

Cash Flow Information

Cash flows in foreign currencies have been conddde).S. Dollars at an approximate weighted aveeghange rate for the respective reporting
periods. The weighted average exchange rate farahsolidated statements of operations was 6.8&,dhd 6.78 Swedish Krona to one U.S. Dollar fer th
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 cteghe. The exchange rate for the consolidateded sheets was 7.80 and 6.48 Swedish Krona-
U.S. Dollar as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, as@dy. The weighted-average exchange rate foctmsolidated statement of operations and of
comprehensive loss was 105.84 and 97.58 Japanes® bae U.S. Dollar for the year ended DecembefB14 and 2013, respectively. The exchange rate
for the consolidated balance sheet was 119.93 @5@2 Japanese Yen to one U.S. Dollar as of Dece®ih014 and 2013, respectively. The weighted-
average exchange rate for the consolidated statesheperations and of comprehensive loss was 16358outh Korean Won to one U.S. Dollar for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The exchange ratteef@onsolidated balance sheet was 1,096.73 Saut#an Won to one U.S. Dollar as of Decembe
2014.

Deferred Revenus

From time-to-time, we receive pre-payments fromaustomers related to future services or futurenie fee revenues. We defer the license fees
until we have met all accounting requirements ésenue recognition as per unit royalty productsdéstibuted or licensed by our customers and the
engineering development fee revenue until such &mthe engineering work has been completed arapsesat by our customers. As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, we have $3.0 million and $2.5 milliorspectively, of deferred license fee revenue relaiqatepayments for future license fees from find a
three customers, respectively and a total of $0lébmand $1.2 million, respectively, of deferredgineering development fees from five and twemtg-o
customers, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8q“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdateSWR) No. 2013-11, “Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating l@assyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credir@forward Exists”. ASU 2013-11 provides
explicit guidance on the financial statement préstém of an unrecognized tax benefit when a netating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, ¢&a
credit carryforward exists. The guidance is effecprospectively for fiscal years, and interim pds within those years, beginning after December 15
2013, with an option for early adoption. We adopted guidance at the beginning of our first quastiefiscal year 2014, and did not determine ther@ny
impact on our consolidated financial statementsdisclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-0®€venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6(0&SU 2014-09"). ASU 20149 amend
the guidance for revenue recognition to replaceeroms, industry specific requirements and conveageas under this topic with those of the Inteometi
Financial Reporting Standards. The ASU implemeriitgeastep process for customer contract revencegmition that focuses on transfer of control, as
opposed to transfer of risk and rewards. The amentialso requires enhanced disclosures regardingature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows from contracts with customers. Otin@jor provisions include the capitalization ancbatimation of certain contract costs, ensuringtihme
value of money is considered in the transactiooepiand allowing estimates of variable considendtiiobe recognized before contingencies are redatve
certain circumstances. The amendments in this A8léfective for reporting periods beginning aflexcember 15, 2016, and early adoption is prohibited
Entities can transition to the standard eitheiosgtectively or as a cumulative-effect adjustmentifdbe date of adoption. We have not yet seleated
transition method and are currently assessingipact the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on comsolidated financial statements and disclosures.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-1Byésentation of Financial Statements - Going Conéellhe amendments in this update
provide guidance in U.S. GAAP about managemergjsamesibilities to evaluate whether there is subisthdoubt about an entity's ability to continueaas
going concern and to provide related footnote dmales. The main provision of the amendments ararf@ntity’'s management, in connection with the
preparation of financial statements, to evaluatetivr there are conditions or events, considerdlteimaggregate, that raise substantial doubt gheut
entity's ability to continue as a going concerrhinitone year after the date that the financiakstaints are issued. Management's evaluation sheudsed
on relevant conditions and events that are knoweasonably knowable at the date the consolidateddial statements are issued. When management
identifies conditions or events that raise subshdbubt about an entity's ability to continuesagoing concern, the entity should disclose infdiomathat
enables users of the consolidated financial stattsrie understand all of the following: (1) prinaigonditions or events that raised substantiabtiebout
the entity's ability to continue as a going congéefore consideration of management's plans)n@)agement's evaluation of the significance ofehos
conditions or events in relation to the entity'dighto meet its obligations; and (3) managemeplans that alleviated substantial doubt abouetitiy's
ability to continue as a going concern or manageaiseians that are intended to mitigate the conlitior events that raise substantial doubt abeut th
entity's ability to continue as a going concerne Bmendments in this update are effective forimtand annual reporting periods after Decembel0%6
and early application is permitted. We are curgeatisessing this guidance for future implementation

Results of Operations
Net Revenues

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@td $4.7 million, compared to $3.7 million and $illion for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Our net revenueshfoyear ended December 31, 2014 included $3.lomilfiom technology license fees due to product
shipments from sixteen customers and $1.6 milliondn-recurring engineering services related tatouch technology from twentyvo customers. Our n
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013died!$2.9 million from technology license fees dueroduct shipments from twelve customers and
$800,000 in non-recurring engineering servicegedléo our touch technology from twenty-two custesn®ur net revenues for the year ended December
31, 2012 included $6.2 million from technology lise fees due to product shipments from eight cust®and $925,000 in non-recurring engineering
services related to our touch technology from éifteustomers.

The increase in overall net revenues in the yede@®ecember 31, 2014 compared to the year endeshiber 31, 2013 is primarily due to an
increase in license fees from HP in the printerkaiain addition, on October 16, 2013, we determhiih@vas appropriate to recognize licensing revanue
the period in which royalty reports are receivedher than the period in which the products argidiged or to which the license relates. The eftéthis
change is $713,000 of license fees related to mestproducts shipped or distributed in the foudharter of 2013 was recognized in the first quaster
2014.

Customer prepayments are included in deferred tgeand are amortized to net revenues as a cusgmmeducts are shipped or distributed. For
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 262,000, $258,000 and $536,000 in license feeterkta units licensed or distributed were recoghize
as revenue, respectively, and as of December 34, #3.0 million remained in deferred revenues frustomers’ license fee prepayments.

As of December 31, 2014, we had thirty-five tecloggllicense agreements with global OEMs. This caegpuwith thirty-three and twenty-four
technology license agreements with global OEMsf&egember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Sixtéeur customers are currently shipping products
and we anticipate others will initiate product shgnts as they complete their final product devekpinand manufacturing cycle throughout 2015 and
onwards.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $3.2 million for the year endedddeber 31, 2014 compared to $2.1 million and $5llfomfor the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Our cost of revenuesdes the direct cost of production of certaistomer prototypes, costs of company employed
engineering personnel and engineering consultardsrplete the engineering design contract. Ousggneargin has increased due to the increase in our
total revenue, particularly our noeeurring engineering services revenue. There lsasb@en a small decrease in cost of revenueslih @0mpared to 20:
resulting from a shift from external consultantsl @xternal prototype services to more internaluesss in 2014, including an in-house prototypedat
milling-machine. The gross margin related to ocetise fees is 100%. As license fees as a perceniftage total revenue increase, our gross margih wi
increase.
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Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D") expenses for @athe years ended December 31, 2014 were $7./omdbmpared to $7.2 million and $5.7
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 @#P2R&D costs mainly consist of personnel relatests, in addition to some external consultancys
such as testing, certifying and measurements aldthgcosts related to developing and building newdpcct prototypes.

We continue to pursue and expand R&D expendituneh® development of our touch technology and aemehnologies. As of December 31,
2014, our R&D department had thirty-eight full-tiremployees. Our R&D department had twenty-sevdrtifne employees compared to twenty-six full-
time employees as of December 31, 2013 and 204@ecévely. Included in R&D expenses are approxaiye$510,000 of non-cash stock option and
warrant expense for the year ended December 34, @thpared to approximately $267,000 and $315,00the same periods in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses for the year endeghiber 31, 2014 were $3.3 million, compared to $2llfon and $4.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyinEhease in 2014 as compared to 2013 is primegited to an increase in sales personnel, magketin
and travel expenses in addition to a decreasenircash stock option expense. The decrease in 20d@@sared to 2012 is primarily related to a decréa
sales personnel, marketing and travel expensedditi@n to a decrease in non-cash stock optionveerdant expense. As of December 31, 2014, our sales
and marketing department had seven full-time emga#eycompared to nine full-time employees and twehaployees as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Included in sales and marketing egpefis approximately $353,000 of non-cash stockmesgfor the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to approximately $909,000 and $1.4 millrthe same periods in 2013 and 2012, respegtivel

Our sales activities focus primarily on OEM custosneho will integrate our touch technology intoith@oducts. Our OEM customers will then
sell and market their products incorporating osht®logy to their customers.

General and Administrative

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses for ytear ended December 31, 2014 were $6.8 millionpered to $5.1 million and $4.7 million
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20X &ctgely. This overall increase in 2014 as comp&oe2013 was primarily related to salary expense,
legal expenses related to patent filings, corpaaateSEC compliance and customer contracts. Thedses in G&A expenses was partially offset by a
decrease in non-cash stock option expense in 204td to stock options issued to employees andomenof our Board of Directors. As of December 31,
2014, we had seven full-time employees in our G&fpartment fulfilling management and accounting oesgbilities compared to eight employees as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Included in G&A expease approximately $0.9 million of non-cash stopkion expense for the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to approximately $1.5 million and$tillion for the same periods in 2013 and 2018peetively.

Interest Expense
Interest expense for the year ended December 34, 28s $14,000. The interest expense was relatedapital lease. We did not have any

interest expense for the years ended Decembe0338,& 2012.
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Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaigthe applicable local currency, the Swedish l&rdhe Japanese Yen and the South Korean
Won. The translation from Swedish Krona, Japanese of South Korean Won to U.S. Dollars is perforfoedalance sheet accounts using current
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheetddtéor income statement accounts using a weightethge exchange rate during the period. Gains or
(losses) resulting from translation are included aeparate component of accumulated other commifeencome (loss). Gains or (losses) resultiogfr
foreign currency transactions are included in galremd administrative expenses in the accompargongolidated statements of operations and were
($37,000), ($155,000) and ($50,000) during the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctRoreign currency translation gains (losses)
were $138,000, $6,000 and ($8,000) during the yermded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctive

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 0% in the year endecebxer 31, 2014 and (1%) in the years ended 2012@h2|, respectively. We recorded
valuation allowances in 2014, 2013 and 2012 foetefl tax assets related to net operating lossetodhe uncertainty of realization.

Net Loss

As a result of the factors discussed above, werdedoa net loss of $14.2 million for the year enBedember 31, 2014, compared to a net loss of
$13.1 million and $9.3 million for the years end@ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Contractual Obligation and Off-Balance Sheet Arraegnents

We do not have any transactions, arrangementsher celationships with unconsolidated entitieg tira reasonably likely to affect our liquidity
capital resources other than the operating leasesred in the normal course of business.

A summary of future minimum payments under non-edable lease commitments as of December 31, 20&4 follows (in thousands):

Less thar More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligatiol $ 1,437 $ 53¢ $ 89¢ $ - $ =
Capital lease 481 79 237 15¢€ 7
Total $ 1918 $ 617 $ 1,13¢ $ 15¢ $ 7

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide ofbalance sheet financing, liquidity, or market adit risk support. We do n
engage in leasing, hedging, research and develdmagrices, or other relationships that expos® lialility that is not reflected on the face oéth
consolidated financial statements.

Operating Leases

On March 22, 2012, we entered into a three yeaeléar 3,185 square feet of office space locat&380 Mission College Blvd, Suite 190, Santa
Clara, CA 95054 USA. The initial lease paymentd0®7 per month, increasing to $7,657 per month thesterm of the lease. This lease is valid throug
July 31, 2015. The annual payment for this spacateg to approximately $86,000 per year.

On April 15, 2012, NTAB entered into a lease f@53 square feet of office space located at Stong28&, Stockholm, Sweden for approximately
$14,000 per month including property tax (excludifgT). The annual payment for this space equatepfmoximately $174,000 per year including
property tax (excluding VAT). This lease was vahdough April 15, 2013. On April 16, 2013, this $eawas extended for one year until April 15, 2014
under the same terms and conditions. Rent remainapproximately $14,000 per month including prop&ax (excluding VAT). This lease was terminated
on July 1, 2013.

On October 12, 2012, we entered into a two yeaeléar office space located at 608 Bureau Shinagéyvta6 Konan, Minato-ku, 108075 Tokyo

Japan. The lease payment is approximately $3,00tpeth. This lease was valid through October 0242 The lease was extended for two years and is
valid until October 31, 2016 under the same temusanditions. The annual payment for this spacas to approximately $36,000 per year.
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On July 1, 2013, NTAB entered into a lease for 6,d8uare feet of office space located at Storg2®ah Stockholm, Sweden for approximately
$38,000 per month including property tax (excludifgT). The annual payment for this space equatepfmoximately $458,000 per year including
property tax (excluding VAT). This lease was vahdough June 30, 2014. On July 1, 2014, the leaseextended and is valid through November 30, 2017
for approximately $443,000 per year. The leasebeaextended on a yearly basis with three monthisenrhotice.

In January 2015, our subsidiary Neonode Koreaértered into a lease agreement located at B-188F5uhg D-Polis. 543-1, Seoul, South Korea
in January, 2015. This lease is valid through Fatyrd3, 2017. The annual payment for this spaepjsoximately $24,000 per year.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 art] @@lrecorded approximately $633,000, $556,0006d0®,000, respectively, for rent
expense.

A summary of future minimum payments under mamcellable operating lease commitments as of Dieeefil, 2014 is as follows (in thousanc

Years ending December & Total
2015 $ 53¢
2016 48¢
2017 41C
$ 1,437

Equipment Subject to Capital Leas

In April 2014, we entered into a lease for cergpcialized milling equipment. Under the termshef lease agreement we are obligated to pur
the equipment at the end of the original 6 yeasddarm for 10% of the original purchase pricenef@équipment. In accordance with relevant accogntin
guidance the lease is classified as a capital |§deelease payments and depreciation period begdaly 1, 2014 when the equipment went into setvic
The interest rate of the lease is 4% per annum.

Non-Recurring Engineering Development Costs

On February 4, 2011, we entered into an Analog @eldevelopment Agreement with an effective datdapifuary 24, 2010 (the “NN1001
Agreement”) with Texas Instruments (“TI") pursuamtwhich Tl integrated Neonode’s intellectual pnapénto an Application Specific Integrated Circuit
(“ASIC™). The NN1001ASIC only can be sold by Tl dusively to licensees of Neonode. Under the terfti@NN1001 Agreement, we will reimburse TI
up to $500,000 of non-recurring engineering (“NR&&yelopment costs based on shipments of the NN1@@der the terms of the NN1001 Agreement
will reimburse Tl an NRE fee of $0.08 per unit &ach of the first one million units sold and $0f@56the next eight million units sold. During thears
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, approximatel80&nd $387,000, respectively of NRE expense¢etta the NN1001 Agreement is included in
research and development in the consolidated staisnof operations. Through December 31, 2014, a@entotal payments of approximately $419,000
under the NN1001 Agreement and there is approxisn&&il,000 included in our accrued expenses ascéber 31, 2014.

On April 25, 2013, we entered into an additionabkag Device Development Agreement with an effectiage of December 6, 2012 (theN1002
Agreement”) with TI pursuant to which TI will integte Neonode's intellectual property into an AST&e NN1002 ASIC only can be sold by TI
exclusively to licensees of Neonode. Under the sesfithe NN1002 Agreement, we will reimburse Tlta$500,000 of NRE costs based on shipments of
the NN1002. Under the terms of the NN1002 Agreementvill reimburse Tl an NRE fee of $0.25 per voiteach of the first two million units sold. The
NN1002 is currently in development and has not relrased to mass production. Through Decembe2®H4, we had made no payments unde
NN1002 Agreemen

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity is dependent on many factors, inchglsales volume, operating profit and the efficieotasset use and turnover. Our future liqui
will be affected by, among other things:

° actual versus anticipated licensing of our techgyl
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actual versus anticipated operating exper

timing of our OEM customer product shipmer

timing of payment for our technology licensing agreents
actual versus anticipated gross profit mar

ability to raise additional capital, if necessaapd

ability to secure credit facilities, if necesse

As of December 31, 2014, we had cash of $6.1 millas compared to $8.8 million as of December 8132

Working capital (current assets less current liées) was $3.0 million as of December 31, 2014npared to working capital of $6.0 million as of
December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in operating activities for the yrated December 31, 2014 of $11.8 million was priimére result of (1) a net loss of
approximately $14.2 million and (2) approximate®:&million in net cash provided by changes in afieg assets and liabilities, primarily accounts
receivable, projects in process, accounts payabtgued expenses and deferred revenue. Cash ufsetitoet losses is reduced by approximately
$2.1 million in non-cash operating expenses, maiplyiprised of depreciation and amortization andkstzased compensation.

Accounts receivable increased approximately $0IBomias of December 31, 2014 compared with Decerihe2013, primarily as a result of net
revenues of approximately $1.8 million in the fouguarter of 2014 compared to approximately $1l0aniin the fourth quarter of 2013. During 2014dan
2013, we were successful in collecting cash frolass our customers substantially in accordandle @r standard payment terms to those customers.

Deferred revenue decreased approximately $0.2omidiuring 2014 mainly related to finalization ofsd®pment projects and net increase in
revenue recognition of prepaid license fees and N&®ihg 2014 as compared to 2013.

Net cash used in operating activities for the yarated December 31, 2013 of $8.8 million was pripalnie result of (1) a net loss of approxima
$13.1 million and (2) approximately $1.5 millionmet cash provided by changes in operating asedtBabilities, primarily accounts receivable and
deferred revenue. Cash used to fund net lossedigsed by approximately $2.8 million in non-caskraging expenses, mainly comprised of depreciation
and amortization and stock-based compensation.

Accounts receivable decreased approximately $1llfbmas of December 31, 2013 compared with DecerBie2012, primarily as a result of net
revenues of approximately $1.7 million in the fouguarter of 2013 compared to approximately $218amiin the fourth quarter of 2012. During 2013dan
2012, we were successful in collecting cash frolass® our customers substantially in accordante eur standard payment terms to those customers.

Deferred revenue increased approximately $0.9anilluring 2013 primarily as a result of additiolegnse technology agreements and
engineering projects entered into during 2013 aspawed to 2012.

Net cash used in operating activities for the yated December 31, 2012 of $3.7 million was prilpdhnie result of (i) a net loss of approximately
$9.3 million and (ii) approximately $1.9 million imet cash used by changes in operating assetsailidi¢s, primarily accounts receivable and defdr
revenue. Cash used to fund net losses is reducagdipximately $3.6 million in net non-cash opemgtexpenses, mainly comprised of depreciation and
amortization and stock-based compensation.

Accounts receivable decreased approximately $1ll®mas of December 31, 2012 compared with DecerBie2011, primarily as a result of net

revenues of approximately $2.3 million in the fouguarter of 2012 compared to approximately $4l0aniin the fourth quarter of 2011. During 2012dan
2011, we were successful in collecting cash frolass® our customers substantially in accordante er standard payment terms to those customers.
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Deferred revenue increased approximately $0.8anilluring 2012 primarily as a result of additiolegnse technology agreements and
engineering projects entered into during 2012 aspawed to 2011.

In the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@l@urchased $115,000, $155,000 and $310,0Q8kcteeely of fixed assets, consisting
primarily of computer software, computers and eagiing equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities during trear ended December 31, 2014 was the result pfoeceds of approximately $9.3 million
from the sale of our common stock and $36,000 veckin connection with the exercise of warrantpuochase 11,500 shares of our common stock. These
increases were offset by repayments of $34,000uocapital lease obligations during the year eridedember 31, 2014.

Net cash provided by financing activities for tremyended December 31, 2013 was $8.7 million arsddue to net proceeds of $1.8 million
received in connection with the exercise of stogliams and warrants for shares of our common stoc&ddition, we issued 1,168,939 shares of our
common stock to investors in connection with anitgdinancing transaction in which we raised appnoately $7.7 million and received
approximately $6.9 million in cash, net of comnuss, direct selling costs including legal, audid ather regulatory costs of approximately $0.8 ionill

Net cash provided by financing activities totalgg@ximately $200,000 during the year ended Dece®bg2012 from the exercise of warrants
for shares of our common stock.

We believe we have sufficient cash to operate titegast the next twelve months.

In May 2014, we issued a warrant to an investdrriesy be exercised by November 15, 2015 to purchpde an aggregate of 2,500,000 shar
our common stock at an exercise price of $5.0%pare. Full exercise of the investor warrant vafult in us receiving $12,725,000 in gross proceeds
excluding any placement agent fee paid as deschbkav. The holder may exercise the warrant in whoslin part. The terms of the investor warrant
require that exercise may only be for cash andiraatshless basis unless, after November 15, 204, has been a failure to maintain the effective
registration of the common shares issuable uporcisecof the investor warrant shares. We filedgisteation statement with the SEC to register the
common shares issuable upon exercise of the investwant that became effective on June 12, 20hé.eékercise price of the investor warrant is sulifec
adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, réadipations, and similar transactions a “fundamatevent” or “stock combination event” as providedin
the terms of the investor warrant. We have agregay a placement agent fee of up to $600,000nn&ction with exercises of the investor warrant. In
addition, we issued to the placement agent a wiatwaacquire up to an aggregate of 75,000 sharearodommon stock. The agent warrant is subjetii¢o
same terms and provisions of the investor warraatidbed above.

In June 2014, we filed a shelf registration statermgth the SEC that became effective on June @242We may from time to time issue shares
of our common stock under our shelf registratioarmounts, at prices, and on terms to be announbed and if the securities are offered. The specdic
any future offerings, along with the use of proceefiany securities offered, will be described praspectus supplement and any other offering nadger
at the time of the offering. There are 5,000,008a# registered and available for issuance undestmif registration.

In the future, we may require sources of capitalddition to cash on hand to continue operatiomstammplement our strategy. If our operations
do not become cash flow positive, we may be fotoezkek credit line facilities from financial irtstions, equity investments or debt arrangements. N
assurances can be given that we will be succeissflitaining such additional financing on reasoedbtms, or at all. If adequate funds are not alstgl on
acceptable terms, or at all, we may be unable eégaately fund our business plans and it could laavegative effect on our business, results of tipea
and financial condition. In addition, if funds aeailable, the issuance of equity securities ousges convertible into equity could dilute thewe of
shares of our common stock and cause the market farifall, and the issuance of debt securitieddcimopose restrictive covenants that could impair o
ability to engage in certain business transactions.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiigghe applicable local currency, the Swedish l&rdhe Japanese Yen and the South Korean
Won, and is subject to foreign currency exchanggeniak. Any increase or decrease in the exchaaigeof the U.S. Dollar compared to the Swedish Eron
Japanese Yen or South Korean Won will impact oturéuoperating results. The majority of our corgatiéd net revenues, 90%, are denominated in US
Dollars and approximately 56% of our consolidatpdrating costs are denominated in Swedish Kronalapdnese Yen. We do not currently enter into
forward-exchange contracts to hedge exposure deaded in foreign currencies or any other derivatinancial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes. In the future, if our operations changkvee determine that our foreign exchange expdsasdéncreased, we may consider entering into hgdgin
transactions to mitigate such risk.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Neonode Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Neonode Inc. (a Delaware corporagind)subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidatéenstamts of operations, comprehensive loss, stodkhsllequity, and cash flows for each of the yéars

the three-year period ended December 31, 2014 eTdwssolidated financial statements are the redmbtysof the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBldUnited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatdeirance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportinguti@unts and disclosures in the financial statesnét audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made ayagement, as well as evaluating the overall fimhstatement presentation. We believe that ouitewud
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaferred to above present fairly, in all matespects, the financial position of Neonode brud
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013thenksults of its operations and its cash flowsefh of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2014, in conformity with accountingpgiples generally accepted in the United Statesmérica.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blodunited States), the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2046l on criteria establishedliriernal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis€OSO) and our report dated March 12, 2015esq@d an adverse opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company'’s internal control over financigboeting.

/s/ KMJ Corbin & Company LL

Costa Mesa, California
March 12, 2015
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ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Accounts receivable, n
Projects in proces
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Deferred revenue

Current portion of capital lease obligation

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligation, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholder equity:

Series B Preferred stock, 54,425 shares authowitbédpar value of $0.001 per share; 83 shares isand
outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respict{(In the event of dissolution, each shareafés B
Preferred stock has a liquidation preference eupér value of $0.001 per share over the shdresromon

stock)

Common stock, 70,000,000 shares authorized at Deee®d, 2014 and 2013, with par value of $0.001spere;
40,455,352 and 37,933,799 shares issued and alitgjeett December 31, 2014 and 2013, respect

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Accumulated defici

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

32

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2014 2013
$ 6,12¢ $ 8,81¢

1,10¢ 96¢

20C 73€

512 61€

7,94¢ 11,13¢

654 33t

$ 8,60 $ 11,47
$ 566 $ 47¢
93t 97¢

3,40¢ 3,66¢

61 -

4,96t 5,12z

367 -

5,332 5,12:

40 38

169,01( 157,99

14¢ 11
(165,929 (151,699

3,27( 6,34¢

$ 8,60 $ 11,47




NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December

2014 2013 2012

Net revenue $ 4,740 $ 3,717 $ 7,137
Cost of revenues 1,50¢ 1,64: 1,46¢
Gross margir 3,231 2,07t 5,672
Operating expense
Research and developme 7,37: 7,23¢ 5,741
Sales and marketir 3,25(C 2,732 4,372
General and administratiy 6,79¢ 5,07¢ 4,721

Total operating expens 17,42 15,04¢ 14,83¢
Operating los: (14,19)) (12,979 (9,162
Other expense
Other expense, net (30) - -
Total other expens (30) -- --
Loss before provision for income tax (14,22) (22,979 (9,162)
Provision for income taxe 13 10¢ 12&
Net loss $ (14,23) $ (13,080 $ (9,287
Loss per common shar
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.36) $ (0_37) $ (0_2E)
Basic and dilute~ weighted average number of common shares outs@g 39,53 35,26¢ 33,00:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands)

Years ended December !

2014 2013 2012
Net loss $ (14,23 $ (13,08) $ (9,28)
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation gain (lo 13¢ 6 (8)
Total comprehensive lo: $ (14,090 $ (13,079 $ (9,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Balances, January 1, 201

Stock option and warrant
compensation expense t¢
employee:

Common stock issued ug
exercise of common stoc
warrants

Exchange of Series
preferred stock for
common stocl

Foreign currency
translation adjustmel

Net loss

Balances, December 3:
2012

Stock option and warrant
compensation expense t¢
employees, directors and
vendors

Proceeds from sale of
common stock, net of
offering costs

Common stock issued ug
exercise of common stoc
warrants

Common stock issued ug
exercise of common stoc
options

Exchange of Series A
preferred stock for
common stocl

Exchange of Series B
preferred stock for
common stocl

NEONODE INC .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Series A

Series B

(in thousands)

Preferred Series A Preferred Series B Common
Stock Preferred Stock Common Additional
Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’

Stock Preferred
Shares Stock

Shares

Stock Shares  Stock

Accumulated

Other

Total

Issued Amount Issued Amount Issued Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity
-$ = -$ - 32,77¢ % 33 % 142,95 $ 13 $ (129,329 $ 13,67
- - - - - - 3,49¢ - - 3,49¢
- - - - 55(C - 223 - - 22¢
- - - - 2 - - - - -
- - - - - - - ® - ®
- - - - - - - - (9,287 (9,287
-$ = -$ - 3333 % 33 % 146,67 $ 5% (138,61)% 8,10(
- - - - - - 2,65¢ - - 2,65¢
- - - - 1,16¢ 2 6,89( - - 6,892
- - - - 3,152 3 711 - - 714

241 - 1,06( 1,06(
- - - - 40 - - - - -
- - - - 1 - - - - -
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Foreign
currency
translation
adjustmen

Net loss

Balances,
December 31
2013

Stock base!
compensatiol
expense to
employees,
directors and
vendors

Proceeds frol
sale of
common
stock, net of
offering costs

Common
stock issued
upon exercist
of common
stock warrani

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustmen

Net loss

Balances,
December 31
2014

NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, CO NTINUED
(in thousands)

Series A Series B
Preferred Series A Preferred SeriesB Common Accumulated
Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Common Additional Other Total
Shares Stock Shares Stock Shares Stock Paid-in  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Issued Amount Issued Amount Issued Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity
- - - - - - - 6 - 6
- - - - - - - - (13,080 (13,080
-3 = -$ - 37,93 $ 38 $ 157,99: $ 11$ (151,699 % 6,34¢
- - - - - - 1,72¢ - - 1,72¢
- - - - 2,50( 2 9,251 - - 9,25¢
- - - - 21 - 36 - - 36
- - - - - - - 13¢ - 13¢
= = = - - - - - (14,239 (14,23)
-3 = - $ - 40,45t $ 40 $ 169,01 $ 14¢ $ (165,929 % 3,27(

The accompanying notes are an integral part otheasolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $ (14,239 $ (23,080 $ (9,287)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash use@erating activities
Stoclk-based compensatic 1,72¢ 2,65¢ 3,49¢
Bad debt expens 167 - -
Depreciation and amortizatic 20z 144 97
Loss on disposal of asst 16 8 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (309) 1,15¢ 1,25:
Projects in proces 53C (736 -
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (60) 95 (29€)
Accounts payable and accrued expel 363 19 23¢
Deposits - - (68
Deferred revenues (239) 93¢ 81¢
Net cash used in operating activities (11,829 (8,807 (3,749
Cash flows used in investing activitie
Purchase of property and equipm (115 (15%) (310
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (10§) (155) (310
Cash flow from financing activitie:
Proceeds from exercise of stock optis - 1,06( -
Proceeds from exercise of warra 36 714 22¢
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net ofinffeosts 9,257 6,892 -
Principal payments on capital lease obliga (34) - -
Net cash provided by financing activiti 9,25¢ 8,66¢ 223
Effect of exchange rates on c: 9) 8 12
Net decrease in ca: (2,68¢€) (282 (3,847
Cash at beginning of year 8,81¢F 9,097 12,94(
Cash at end of year $ 6,12¢ $ 8,81t $ 9,097
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere: $ 14 $ - % -
Cash paid for income tax $ 5 $ 10 $ 12E
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing arah€ing activities:
Purchase of equipment with capital lease obligation $ 53C $ - $ =

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of the business and operations
Background and Organization

Neonode Inc. (“we”, “us”, “our”, or the “Companytyas incorporated in the State of Delaware in 139tha parent of Neonode AB, a company
founded in February 2004 and incorporated in Swe@enDecember 29, 2008, we entered into a shateege agreement with AB Cypressen nr 9683
(renamed Neonode Technologies AB), a Swedish eagimgecompany, and Neonode Technologies AB becam&/bolly owned subsidiary. In 2013, we
established additional subsidiaries: Neonode Japar{Japan); Neno User Interface Solutions AB (@vg; NEON Technology Inc. (U.S.); and Neonode
Americas Inc. (U.S.). In 2014, we established atditeonal subsidiary: Neonode Korea Ltd. (South &t

Operations

Neonode Inc., collectively with its subsidiariesyéferred to as “Neonode”, develops and licensesinterfaces and optical touch technology to
Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEMs”) and Ongi Design Manufacturers (“ODMs”) who embed the haabe technology into devices that they
produce and sell.

Reclassifications

Projects in process as of December 31, 2013 arer@pevted under their own caption, separate froepaid expenses and other current assets, in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet aadegarate component of cash flows from operatitigities in the consolidated statement of castvélo
for the year ended December 31, 2013, in ordeomdocm to the current period presentation.

Liquidity

The Company incurred net losses of approximatefyZsillion, $13.1 million and $9.3 million for theears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively and had an accumulated defigipproximately $165.9 million and $151.7 millicor the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. In addition, the Company used casiperating activities of approximately $11.8 mitijg58.8 million and $3.7 million for the years edde
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In May 2014, we issued a warrant to an investar ey be exercised by November 15, 2015 to purchpge an aggregate of 2,500,000 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price of $5.0%pare. Full exercise of the investor warrant vafult in us receiving $12,725,000 in gross proceeds
excluding any placement agent fee paid as deschbkav. The holder may exercise the warrant in whoslin part. The terms of the investor warrant
require that exercise may only be for cash andraatshless basis unless, after November 15, 2044, has been a failure to maintain the effective
registration of the common shares issuable uporciseof the investor warrant shares. We filedgisteation statement with the SEC to register the
common shares issuable upon exercise of the investwant that became effective on June 12, 20hé.€kercise price of the investor warrant is sulifec
adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, réadipations, and similar transactions a “fundanmatevent” or “stock combination event” as providedin
the terms of the investor warrant. We have agregy a placement agent fee of up to $600,000nn@ction with exercises of the investor warrant. In
addition, we issued to the placement agent a wiatoaacquire up to an aggregate of 75,000 sharearafommon stock. The agent warrant is subjetitéo
same terms and provisions of the investor warraatiibed above.

In June 2014, we filed a shelf registration statermégth the SEC that became effective on June Q242We may from time to time issue shares of
our common stock under our shelf registration irants, at prices, and on terms to be announced ateif the securities are offered. The speciffcany
future offerings, along with the use of proceedamyf securities offered, will be described in aspectus supplement and any other offering mateeathe
time of the offering. There are 5,000,000 shargstered and available for issuance under our skgitration.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of

America (“U.S. GAAP”) and include the accounts afdwiode Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries.idtitr-company accounts and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation.
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The consolidated statements of operations, compséeloss and cash flows for the year ended DeeeBth 2012 include our accounts and those of our
wholly owned subsidiary, Neonode Technologies AR€8en).

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,8t the consolidated statements of operationspaamensive loss and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2013 include our accounts asé f our wholly owned subsidiaries, Neonode Teldgies AB (Sweden), Neonode Americas Inc.
(U.S.), Neonode Japan Inc. (Japan), NEON Techndlogy(U.S.) and Neno User Interface Solutions SBéden).

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,8t the consolidated statements of operationspamensive loss and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2014 include our accounts ase tbf our wholly owned subsidiaries, Neonode Teldgies AB (Sweden), Neonode Americas Inc.
(U.S.), Neonode Japan Inc. (Japan), NEON Techndlogy(U.S.), Neno User Interface Solutions AB (8&@) and Neonode Korea Ltd. (South Korea).

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires making estimates andiaggtions that affect, at the date of the
financial statements, the reported amounts of aisset liabilities, disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities and the reported amounts of revesmag
expenses. Actual results could differ from thesemedes. Significant estimates include, but arelinuted to, collectability of accounts receivable,
recoverability of capitalized project costs andgdived assets, the valuation allowance relateslitodeferred tax assets, and the fair value obaptand
warrants issued for stock-based compensation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We have not had any liquid investments other tt@mmal cash deposits with bank institutions to datee Company considers all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three mantt less to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Cash Balance Risks

Cash balances are maintained at various banke id 8., Japan, Sweden and South Korea. At timgssits held with financial institutions in the
U.S may exceed the amount of insurance providetidyederal Deposit Insurance Corporation, whiclviges basic deposit coverage with limits up to
$250,000 per owner. The Swedish government provigesance coverage up to 100,000 euro per custantecovers deposits in all types of
accounts. The Japanese government provides isucawverage up to 10,000,000 Yen per customerKbhnea Deposit Insurance Corporation provides
insurance coverage up to 50,000,000 Won per custdkseof December 31, 2014, we had approximately $illion in excess of insurance limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acous

Our accounts receivable are stated at net readizathie. Our policy is to maintain allowances fstiraated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. Creditsliare established through a process of reviewiadinancial history and stability of each custome
Where appropriate, we obtain credit rating repani3 financial statements of the customer when ahiééang or modifying its credit limits. We regularly
evaluate the collectability of our trade receivaidéances based on a combination of factors. Whaismer’'s account balance becomes past due, we
initiate dialogue with the customer to determine thuse. If it is determined that the customerlvgllinable to meet its financial obligation, sushrathe
case of a bankruptcy filing, deterioration in thstomer’s operating results or financial positiorother material events impacting its businessragerd a
specific allowance to reduce the related receivitbthe amount we expect to recover. Should atirefffail to recover the related receivable, wd wiite-
off the account. We also record an allowance focwdtomers based on certain other factors inctuthie length of time the receivables are past dde a
historical collection experience with customersr @ilowance for doubtful accounts was approxima$dl§7,000 as of December 31, 2014. An allowance
for doubtful accounts was not necessary as of Dbeei3il, 2013.

Projects in Process
Projects in process consist of costs incurred tdwhe completion of various projects for certaistomers. These costs are primarily comprised of
direct engineering labor costs and project-speeifigipment costs. These costs are capitalized ohadance sheet as an asset and deferred untiiuever
each project is recognized in accordance with evemue recognition policy. Costs capitalized inguts in process were $200,000 and $736,000 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, netopinaulated depreciation and amortization. Depriesic@nd amortization are computed using the
straight-line method based upon estimated usefes I0f the assets as follows:

Estimated useful live

Computer equipmer 3 years
Furniture and fixture 5 years

Equipment purchased under capital leases is aradrtin a straight-line basis over the estimateduli&f of the asset or term of the lease,
whichever is shorter.

Upon retirement or sale of property and equipmesgt and accumulated depreciation and amortizatiememoved from the accounts and any
gains or losses are reflected in the consolidatgdrments of operations. Maintenance and reparstarged to expense as incurred.
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Long-Lived Assets

We assess any impairment by estimating the futash 6ow from the associated asset in accordantterelevant accounting guidance. If the
estimated undiscounted future cash flow relatetiese assets decreases or the useful life is shiost® originally estimated, we may incur charges f
impairment of these assets. The impairment is basdHe estimated discounted cash flow associattdthe asset. As of December 31, 2014, we believe
there is no impairment of our long-lived assetseréhcan be no assurance, however, that markett@mrsdvill not change or sufficient demand for our
products and services will continue, which coulslitein impairment of long-lived assets in the fetu

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses
The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaii®ghe applicable local currency, the Swedish l&rdhe Japanese Yen and the South Korean
Won. The translation from Swedish Krona, Japaneseof South Korean won to U.S. Dollars is perforfgdalance sheet accounts using current
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheetddtéor income statement accounts using a weightethge exchange rate during the period. Gains or
(losses) resulting from translation are included asparate component of accumulated other compisleeincome (loss). Gains or (losses) resultiogfr
foreign currency transactions are included in galreend administrative expenses in the accomparggngolidated statements of operations and were
($37,000), ($155,000) and ($50,000) during the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctroreign currency translation gains (losses)
were $138,000, $6,000 and ($8,000) during the yermded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctive
Concentration of Credit and Business Risks
Our customers are located in U.S., Europe and Asia.
As of December 31, 2014, three customers repres@pigroximately 87% of the Company’s consolidatezbants receivable.
As of December 31, 2013, two customers represapgprbximately 56% of the Company’s consolidatedants receivable.

Our net revenues for the year ended December 34, ®@re earned from thirty-two customers. Customérs accounted for 10% or more of our
net revenues during the year ended December 34, &@las follows.

. Hewlett-Packard Company — 24%
. KOBO Inc. — 10%

. Leap Frog Enterprises Inc. — 11%
. Sony Corporation — 10%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@i8 @arned from twentyine customers. Customers who accounted for 10&tooe of our ne
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2@lasaollows.

. KOBO Inc. — 28%

. Netronix Inc. — 18%

. Leap Frog Enterprises Inc. — 12%
. Sony Corporation — 11%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t2 @arned from twenty customers. Customers whauated for 10% or more of our net
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2@l&sdollows:

. Amazon.com Inc. — 32%
. KOBO Inc. — 26% Sony Corporation — 17%
. Sony Corporation — 17%

Revenue Recognition
Licensing Revenues:

We derive revenue from the licensing of internalgveloped intellectual property (“IP”). We entetoiP licensing agreements that generally
provide licensees the right to incorporate ourdmponents in their products with terms and condgithat vary by licensee. The IP licensing agreésnen
generally include a nonexclusive license for thdarlying IP. Fees under these agreements may iadicehse fees relating to our IP and royaltiesapéy
following the distribution by our licensees of pumtk incorporating the licensed technology. Thenge for our IP has standalone value and can loehyse
the licensee without maintenance and support. \WenwfdJ.S. GAAP for revenue recognition as per unitalty products are distributed or licensed by our
customers. For technology license arrangementsithaot require significant modification or custaation of the underlying technology, we recognize
technology license revenue when: (1) we enterantgally binding arrangement with a customer ffier license of technology; (2) the customer distabu
or licenses the products; (3) the customer paymsatgemed fixed or determinable and free of cometiinges or significant uncertainties; and (4) caitetis
reasonably assured. Our customers report to ugputduetities of products distributed or licensedhgnt after the end of the reporting period stipalanethe
contract, generally 30 to 45 days after the enth@imonth or quarter. Effective October 16, 2018,mmanagement determined it was appropriate to
recognize licensing revenue in the period in whiyalty reports are received, rather than the pariovhich the products are distributed or to whtich
license relates.

Explicit return rights are not offered to customdrsere have been no returns through December(@4,. 2
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Engineering Services:

We may sell engineering consulting services toomstomers on a flat rate or hourly rate basis. ¥¢egnize revenue from these services when alll
of the following conditions are met: (1) evidenegseed of an arrangement with the customer, typicainsisting of a purchase order or contracto(®)
services were performed and risk of loss passétetoustomer; (3) we completed all of the necessargs of the contract; (4) the amount of revemue t
which we were entitled was fixed or determinable] &) we believed it was probable that we wouldble to collect the amount due from the customer.
To the extent that one or more of these conditi@ssnot been satisfied, we defer recognition cémere. Generally, we recognize revenue as the esgig
services stipulated under the contract are contbletel accepted by our customers. Engineering ssrpierformed under a signed statement of work
(“SOW") with a customer are accounted for underadbmpleted contract method, as these SOW'’s aré¢-tdran in nature and our total contract costs are
difficult to estimate. Estimated losses on SOW gxty are recognized in full as soon as they beayident.

Deferred Revenues
From time-to-time we receive prepayments from awsteamers related to future services or future Becfiee revenues. We defer the license fees
until we have met all accounting requirements ésenue recognition as per unit royalty productsdéstibuted and royalty reports are received.
Engineering development fee revenues are deferréidsuch time as the engineering work has beerpteted and accepted by our customers.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adiirgiicosts amounted to approximately $172,000, $D8land $312,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D") costs are expeaséadcurred. R&D costs consist mainly of persomaksdted costs in addition to some
external consultancy costs such as testing, cengifgnd measurements.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We measure the cost of employee services recaiverchange for an award of equity instrumentsuiticlg share options, based on the estimated
fair value of the award on the grant date, andgeize the value as compensation expense over tiwagbe employee is required to provide services i
exchange for the award, usually the vesting penetipf estimated forfeitures.

We account for equity instruments issued to nopleyees at their estimated fair value. The measen¢mate for the estimated fair value for the
equity instruments issued is determined at theeza (1) the date at which a commitment for parfance by the consultant or vendor is reached)ahé
date at which the consultant or vendor’s perforreaacomplete. In the case of equity instrumersised to consultants, the estimated fair value®f th
equity instruments is primarily recognized over tien of the consulting agreement. The estimated/édue of the stock-based compensation is
periodically re-measured and income or expensecisgnized during the vesting term.

When determining stockased compensation expense involving options amchnta, we determine the estimated fair value 6ibop and warran
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
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Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax liabilities and assatshe expected future tax consequences of itentdithee been included in the consolidated
financial statements or tax returns. We estimaterite taxes based on rates in effect in each géittsglictions in which we operate. Deferred incotzve
assets and liabilities are determined based ugtereices between the financial statement and iec@ambases of assets and liabilities using endated
rates in effect for the year in which the differea@re expected to reverse. The realization ofrdef¢ax assets is based on historical tax positzom
expectations about future taxable income. Valuagiowances are recorded against net deferredstetswhen, in our opinion, realization is uncaertai
based on the “more likely than not” criteria of #ecounting guidance.

Based on the uncertainty of future pre-tax incomefully reserved our net deferred tax assets &eobmber 31, 2014 and 2013. In the event we
were to determine that we would be able to realinedeferred tax assets in the future, an adjudttoethe deferred tax asset would increase incontled
period such determination was made. The provisiointome taxes represents the net change in ddfeak amounts, plus income taxes payable for the
current period.

We follow U.S. GAAP related to uncertain tax pasis, which provisions include a two-step approactetognizing, de-recognizing and
measuring uncertain tax positions. As a resultdigenot recognize a liability for unrecognized tzenefits. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, wenload
unrecognized tax benefits.

Net Loss per Share

Net loss per share amounts have been computed bashd weighted-average number of shares of constomk outstanding during the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Net losshpee, assuming dilution amounts from commonkséogiivalents, is computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common statlpatential common stock equivalents outstanduming the period. The weighted average number
of shares of common stock and potential commorkstqaivalents used in computing the net loss paresfor years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 exclude the potential common stock equivajestshe effect would be anti-dilutive (see Notg 14

Comprehensive Loss

Our comprehensive loss includes foreign currereydiation gains and losses. The cumulative amduramslation gains and losses are reflected
as a separate component of stockholders’ equityeirtonsolidated balance sheets, as accumulatedaatimprehensive income.

Cash Flow Information

Cash flows in foreign currencies have been conddde).S. Dollars at an approximate weighted aveeghange rate for the respective reporting
periods. The weighted average exchange rate farahsolidated statements of operations was 6.86,dhd 6.78 Swedish Krona to one U.S. Dollar fer th
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ctesghe The exchange rate for the consolidatedhzd sheets was 7.80 and 6.48 Swedish Krona
U.S. Dollar as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ctsmdy. The weighted-average exchange rate foctresolidated statement of operations and of
comprehensive loss was 105.84 and 97.58 Japanes® ¥ee U.S. Dollar for the year ended DecembeRB814 and 2013. The exchange rate for the
consolidated balance sheet was 119.93 and 105022dse Yen to one U.S. Dollar as of December 314 26d 2013. The weighted-average exchange rate
for the consolidated statement of operations ar@bofprehensive loss was 1,050.63 South Korean avoné U.S. Dollar for the year ended December 31,
2014. The exchange rate for the consolidated balaheet was 1,096.73 South Korean Won to one Wartas of December 31, 2014.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
We disclose the estimated fair values for all firiahinstruments for which it is practicable toiestte fair value. Financial instruments including

cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable angealcexpenses and are deemed to approximate faé dae to their short maturities.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8q“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdateSWR) No. 2013-11, “Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating l@asyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credin@forward Exists”. ASU 2013-11 provides
explicit guidance on the financial statement préstém of an unrecognized tax benefit when a netating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, ¢&a
credit carryforward exists. The guidance is effecprospectively for fiscal years, and interim pds within those years, beginning after December 15
2013, with an option for early adoption. We adopted guidance at the beginning of our first quastiefiscal year 2014, and did not determine ther@ny
impact on our consolidated financial statementsdisclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-0®€venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6(&SU 2014-09"). ASU 20149 amend
the guidance for revenue recognition to replaceeroms, industry specific requirements and conveageas under this topic with those of the Inteosti
Financial Reporting Standards. The ASU implemerfigeastep process for customer contract revencegmtion that focuses on transfer of control, as
opposed to transfer of risk and rewards. The amentialso requires enhanced disclosures regardingature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows from contracts with customers. Othajor provisions include the capitalization ancbatimation of certain contract costs, ensuringtthme
value of money is considered in the transactiooepiand allowing estimates of variable considendatiiobe recognized before contingencies are redatve
certain circumstances. The amendments in this A8léffective for reporting periods beginning afbexcember 15, 2016, and early adoption is prohibited
Entities can transition to the standard eitheosgtectively or as a cumulative-effect adjustmerdfabe date of adoption. We have not yet seleated
transition method and are currently assessingntipact the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on cainsolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-1Brésentation of Financial Statements - Going Conéellhe amendments in this update
provide guidance in U.S. GAAP about managemergjsaesibilities to evaluate whether there is sultistbdioubt about an entity's ability to continueaas
going concern and to provide related footnote dmales. The main provision of the amendments ararf@ntity's management, in connection with the
preparation of financial statements, to evaluatettvdr there are conditions or events, consideréteiaggregate, that raise substantial doubt aheut
entity's ability to continue as a going concerrhwitone year after the date that the financiabstants are issued. Management's evaluation sheutdsed
on relevant conditions and events that are knoweasonably knowable at the date the consolidateddial statements are issued. When management
identifies conditions or events that raise subg&hdbubt about an entity's ability to continueaagoing concern, the entity should disclose infaromathat
enables users of the consolidated financial stat&srie understand all of the following: (1) pringigonditions or events that raised substantiabtiabout
the entity's ability to continue as a going cong@efore consideration of management's plans)n@)agement's evaluation of the significance ofehos
conditions or events in relation to the entity'sighto meet its obligations; and (3) managemeplans that alleviated substantial doubt abouktitéy's
ability to continue as a going concern or manageimetans that are intended to mitigate the comlitior events that raise substantial doubt abeut th
entity's ability to continue as a going concerne Bimendments in this update are effective forimtand annual reporting periods after Decembe20%6
and early application is permitted. The Comparguisently assessing this guidance for future imgletation.

3. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expense and other current assets consig &dllowing (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Prepaid insuranc $ 12z $ 91
Prepaid ren 39 75
VAT receivable 137 25(C
Other 21E 20C
$ 512 $ 61€

Total prepaid expenses and other current a
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4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiousands):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Computers, software, furniture and fixtu $ 54¢ $ 54¢
Equipment under capital lea 45¢ -
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (350 (214)
Property and equipment, r $ 654 $ 33%

Depreciation and amortization expense was $202fD94,000 and $97,000 for the years ended Dece@ih@014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
5. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in trengs):

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Salaries, payroll taxes, vacation and ben: $ 68€ $ 70€
Accrued consulting fees and ott 24¢ 272
Total accrued expens $ 93¢ % 9v¢

6. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting guidance defines fair value, establishésmework for measuring fair value, and expatidslosure requirements about fair value
measurements. The accounting guidance does notateaady new fair value measurements and is apfgitatassets and liabilities that are requiredeto b
recorded at fair value under other accounting pnonements.

There were no assets or liabilities recorded atviue on a recurring basis in 2014 and 2013.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy argcdbeed as follows:

Level 1: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitfere are quoted prices (unadjusted) in activéketsufor identical assets and liabilities. We had n
Level 1 assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are inputs other than quoted prices thanaheded in Level 1 observable, either directly or
indirectly. We had no Level 2 assets or liabilities

Level 3: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are unobservable inputs to the valuatiomatetiogy that are significant to the measurement
of the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Wa no Level 3 assets or liabilities.

7. Deferred Revenues

We defer the license fees until we have met albanting requirements for revenue recognition asupérroyalty products are distributed and
royalty reports are received. Engineering develapirfee revenues are deferred until such time asnlg:eering work has been completed and accepted b
our customers. As of December 31, 2014 and 20131ade$3.0 million and $2.5 million, respectively deferred license fee revenue related to prepats
for future license fees from five and three custaneespectively, and a total of $0.4 million aridZmillion, respectively, of deferred engineering
development fees from five and twenty-one custonrtespectively.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we s&@D)00 shares of our common stock at a price @0der share to an accredited institutional
investor for an aggregate purchase price of $100000in gross proceeds and net proceeds of appatedyr$9.3 million after expenses and fees, incig@
$600,000 placement agent fee.

In addition, we issued a warrant to the investat thay be exercised by November 15, 2015 to puechpgo an aggregate of 2,500,000 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price of $5.0%pare (see note 9). Full exercise of the investoramt will result in us receiving $12,725,000 o
proceeds, excluding any placement agent fee palésgibed below. The holder may exercise the waimavhole or in part. The terms of the investor
warrant require that exercise may only be for cagthnot a cashless basis unless, after Novemb@018, there has been a failure to maintain thectffe
registration of the common shares issuable uporcisecof the investor warrant shares. We filedgisteation statement with the SEC to register the
common shares issuable upon exercise of the invastwant that became effective on June 12, 20hé.€kercise price of the investor warrant is sulifec
adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends, réadipations, and similar transactions a “fundanmatevent” or “stock combination event” as providedin
the terms of the investor warrant. We have agregy a placement agent fee of up to $600,000nn@ction with exercises of the investor warrant. In
addition, we issued to the placement agent a wiatoaacquire up to an aggregate of 75,000 sharearafommon stock. The agent warrant is subjetitéo
same terms and provisions of the investor warraatiibed above.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, warrddehe exercised warrants to purchase 17,000 slwirg@mmon stock using the cashless net
exercise provision allowed in the warrant and ne=il0,053 shares of our common stock. In additi@rrant holders exercised warrants to purchase
11,500 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$8.13 per share for total cash proceeds of aupately $36,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, warrddehie exercised warrants to purchase 1,815,368 st common stock using the cashless
exercise provision allowed in the warrant and neeil, 384,719 shares of our common stock. In additvarrant holders exercised warrants to purchase
429,536 shares of common stock and paid a cashisgqrice ranging between $1.00 and $3.13 peedbatotal cash proceeds of approximately
$714,000.

On February 26, 2013, David Brunton, our formere€Rinancial Officer, exercised warrants to purehd20,000 shares of common stock using
the cashless exercise provision allowed in theamand received 266,228 shares of our common.stock

On April 4, 2013, we extended a 40,000 stock pwsehearrant with an exercise price of $1.00 peresttaat expired on January 28, 2013 that was
issued to an investor in a previous convertible flabncing. The estimated fair value of the watnaas $166,000 on the date of grant, using thelBlac
Scholes option pricing model, which was expenseihduhe year ended December 31, 2013. The wahader exercised the warrant on April 4, 2013 and
the Company received cash proceeds of $40,000N@&e9).

On August 12, 2013, Thomas Eriksson, our Chief Httee Officer, exercised warrants to purchase 40 ghares of common stock using the
cashless net exercise provision allowed in theavar@nd received 326,608 shares of our common.stock

On August 12, 2013, Per Bystedt, the Chairman oBmard, exercised warrants to purchase 387,772sld common stock using the cashless
exercise provision allowed in the warrant and nee@i316,624 shares of our common stock.

On August 12, 2013, Phenning Holdings Ltd, a corggamtrolled by Per Bystedt, the Chairman of ouaily exercised warrants to purchase
227,661 shares of common stock using the cashédssxarcise provision allowed in the warrant arebieed 182,890 shares of our common stock.

On August 12, 2013, Davisa Ltd, a company contdailg Mats Dahlin, a member of our Board, exercisadants to purchase 215,724 shares of
common stock using the cashless net exercise jwowadiowed in the warrant and received 176,143eshaf our common stock.

On August 12, 2013, John Reardon, a member of oard exercised warrants to purchase 80,000 shaossnmon stock using the cashless net
exercise provision allowed in the warrant and neei65,322 shares of our common stock.
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On September 16, 2013, we issued 1,168,939 shfwes common stock to investors in connection withequity financing transaction in which
we raised approximately $7.7 million and receivpdraximately $6.9 million in cash, net of commissopdirect offering costs including legal, auditian
other regulatory costs of approximately $0.8 millio

On March 16, 2012, John Reardon, a member of candoaf directors, exercised a warrant to purch@ @0 shares of common stock using the
net exercise provision allowed in the warrant asekived 174,798 shares of our common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, warrddel® (excluding members of our board of directer®grcised warrants to purchase 361,000
shares of common stock using the net exercise gioovallowed in the warrant and received 235,14¢eshof our common stock. Warrant holders exer
warrants to purchase 17,500 shares of common satuttlpaid a cash exercise price of $3.13 per sbatethl proceeds of $54,775. In addition, duriod 2
a warrant holder exercised a warrant to purcha8238 shares of common stock and paid a cash egeptice of $1.38 per share for total proceeds of
$168,668.

Preferred Stock

On March 21, 2013, Series A Preferred stockholdrchanged 83 shares of Series A Preferred sto@9{@00 shares of our common stock,
eliminating all Series A Preferred shares outstagdi

On February 27, 2013, Series B Preferred stockmolkebechanged 4 shares of Series B Preferred sto&28 shares of our common stock.
On March 21, 2013, Series B Preferred stockholeecthanged 8 shares of Series B Preferred stodfshares of our common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Serieef@iiPed stockholders exchanged 19 shares of I@referred stock for 2,509 shares of our
common stock.

The terms of the Series B Preferred stock are |k
Dividends and Distributions
The holders of shares of Series B Preferred stoekititled to participate with the holders of cammon stock with respect to any dividends
declared on the common stock in proportion to th@lper of shares of common stock issuable upon esioveof the shares of Series B Preferred stoatt
by them.
Liquidation Preference
In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, omding up of our operations, either voluntary ordluntary, subject to the rights of the Series B
Preferred stock and Senior Preferred stock, skeadititled to receive, after any distribution te tiolders of senior preferred stock and prior @ ian
preference to any distribution to the holders ofiown stock, $0.001 for each share of Series B Peefstock then outstanding.
Voting
The holders of shares of Series B Preferred stauk bne vote for each share of Series B Prefetoett keld by them.
Conversion
Initially, each share of Series B Preferred stoels wonvertible into one share of our common sto€k March 31, 2009, our stockholders

approved a resolution to increase the authorizacestapital, and to increase the conversion ratik82.07 shares of our common stock for each gfare
Series B Preferred stock.
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Conversion of Preferred Stock Issued to Common Ktoc

The following table summarizes the amounts as afewer 31, 2014:

Shares of

Preferred

Stock Not
Exchanged as

Shares of
Common Stock
after
Conversion of
all
Outstanding
Shares of
Preferred
Stock Not yet
Exchanged at

of December Conversion December 31,
31, 2014 Ratio 2014
132.07 10,96:

Series B Preferred Sto: 83

9. Stock-Based Compensation

We have adopted equity incentive plans for whidlclsoptions and restricted stock awards are availabgrant to employees, consultants and
directors. All employee and director stock optignanted under our stock option plans have an eseepice equal to the market value of the undeglyin
common stock on the grant date. There are no geptovisions tied to performance conditions for apyions, as vesting for all outstanding optiomgsa
was based only on continued service as an emplogesyltant or director. All of our outstandingck®ptions and restricted stock awards are claskids
equity instruments.

Stock Options
As of December 31, 2014, we had two equity incenpilans:

« The 1998 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan (the “199&8rP), which expired in June 2008; and
« The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”).

We also had one non-employee director stock optian as of December 31, 2014:
« The 2001 No-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (i Director Pla’"), which expired in March 201

The following table summarizes information withpest to all options to purchase shares of commmrkgiutstanding under the 1998 Plan, the
2006 Plan and the Director Plan at December 314:201

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding a Contractual Average Exercisable at Average
Range of Exercise Pric 12/31/14 Life (years) Exercise Prict 12/31/14 Exercise Prict
$2.08- $3.50 70,20( 6.7C $ 2.61 - % =
$ 3.51- $5.00 1,221,001 43: 3 4.24 1,211,83 % 4.2k
$5.01- $6.50 245,00( 557 $ 5.9C 91,38: $ 5.62
$6.51- $10.0C 170,00( 3.7¢ % 7.8¢ 138,33: $ 7.9¢
$ 10.01- $ 86.25 3,20( 0.01 $ 86.2¢F 3,20C $ 86.2¢F
1,709,401 454 3 4.92 1,444,775 $ 4.87
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A summary of the combined activity under all of #teck option plans is set forth below:

Weighted
Average Weighted-
Number of Exercise Price Average
Shares Per Shar¢ Exercise Prict
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 19,32¢ $35.39-368.7¢ $ 92.1¢
Grantec 1,704,000 $ 4.02-6.2¢ $ 4.3t
Cancelled or expire (8,124 $35.39-368.7F $ 69.3¢
Exercised == = | § ==
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest at Demedih 2017 1,715,200 $ 4.02-125.0( $ 5.04
Grantec 145,000 $ 554-77C $ 6.0€
Cancelled or expire (18,25¢) $ 4.25-125.00 $ 5.57
Exercisec (241,36) $ 4.25-6.2¢ $ 4.3¢
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest at Demedih 201: 1,600,58. $ 4.02-1225( $ 5.22
Grantec 405,20 $ 2.068.21 $ 6.31
Cancelled or expire (296,38) $ 4.65-1225( $ 5.4¢€
Exercisec = B = | 8 =
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest at Demegdh 201« 1,709,400 $ 2.08-86.2t $ 4.9z

The assumptions used to value stock options grdatdilectors, employees and consultants duringyéaes ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

are as follows:

Annual dividend yielc
Expected life (years
Risk-free interest rat
Expected volatility

Annual dividend yielc
Expected life (years
Risk-free interest rat
Expected volatility

Annual dividend yielc
Expected life (years
Risk-free interest rat
Expected volatility

For the yea
ended December 3

1,20

35
0.28%- 1.47%
60.68%- 108.75

For the yea
ended December 3

%

1,20

4.3
0.65%- 2.15%
117%- 154%

For the yea
ended December 3

1,20

3.8-4.3
0.43%- 0.62%
169%- 187%

The aggregate intrinsic value of the 1,709,400kstqtions that are outstanding, vested and expéctedst as of December 31, 2014 is $54,060.
During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h8, we recorded $1.7 million, $2.5 million and4illion, respectively, of compensation

expense related to the vesting of stock options. 8dtimated fair value of the stock-based compiemsatas calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model as of the grant date of the stockoopt
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The 1998 Plan terminated effective June 15, 200®0Agh we can no longer issue stock options oth@flans, the outstanding options at the
date of termination will remain outstanding andtiesaccordance with their terms. Options granteden the Director Plan vest over a one to four-year
period, expire five to seven years after the daggant and have exercise prices reflecting markiie of the shares of our common stock on the afate
grant. Stock options granted under the 1998 ané Bléns are exercisable over a maximum term ofeéans from the date of grant, vest in various
installments over a one to four-year period ancehexercise prices reflecting the market value efsthares of common stock on the date of grant.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we gragdns to purchase 395,200 shares of our commeak £o employees and an option to
purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock tan@efomember of our board of directors with totaingrdate estimated fair value of $1.3 million congul
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Theghted-average grant date fair value of the optgmanted during year ended December 31, 2014 was
$3.14 per share.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we redeimeaggregate of $1.1 million from five employ@esonnection with the exercise of stock
options into 241,361 shares of common stock. Ttrisic value of the options exercised was $502@@¢the date of exercise.

We granted options to purchase 145,000 sharesrafomamon stock to three employees during the yede@ December 31, 2013 with an
aggregate grant date fair value of approximate$88700 computed using the Black-Scholes optiorimgimodel. The options have a 7-year life and /3 o
the options are vested on the one year annivedsdeyof grant with the remaining to vest monthlgothe remaining 24-months.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we granieth,000 options to purchase shares of our constomk to employees and 360,000 opt
to purchase shares of our common stock to membexs @oard. During the year ended December 3122@& granted 169,000 options to purchase sl
of our common stock to a consultant.

Warrants

During the year ended December 31, 2014 and 20&Baic warrant holders exercised their warrants eanthe cash and cashl
exercise provisions, as defined in the agreem8&eis.Note 8 for details of such exercises and numftmymmon stock shares issued.

On December 3, 2010, we issued 120,000 warrats exercise price of $1.63 per share to an empldyezestimated fair value of the warrants
was $198,000 on the date of grant, using the B&aieles option pricing model, which has been ameritio expense over 24 months. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, we recorded $91,000 ck bsed compensation expense related to vestisigcbfwarrants.

We issued 20,000 three-year stock purchase warmaats exercise price of $3.90 per share with singeperiod over 24 months to an employee
during the year ended December 31, 2011. The wedesirrant granted to an employee had an estinfatechlue on the date of grant of $75,000. This
amount was expensed over the vesting period an®@®2@&nd $38,000 of expense related to this waisdntluded in research and development expense
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20 ®catgely. The estimated fair value of stock-baseahpensation related to the issuance of warrants is
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricingdei as of the grant date of the underlying warrant

The stockbased compensation expense for the years endednbec81, 2014, 2013 and 2012 reflects the estinfatedalue of the vested portit
of options and warrants granted to directors, eyg#s and non-employees.

(In thousands Years ende:
December 31
2014 2013 2012
Research and developm $ 51C $ 267 $ 31t
Sales and marketir 35z 90¢ 1,407
General and administratiy 86€ 1,48( 1,77
Stock compensation exper $ 1,72¢  $ 2,65¢ $ 3,49¢
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(In thousands)

Stocl-based compensatic

Remaining
unamortized
expense at
December 31,
2014

$ 88C

The remaining unamortized expense related to siptikns and warrants will be recognized on a dhidige basis monthly as compensation

expense over the remaining vesting period whichiapmates 1.7 years.

A summary of all warrant activity is set forth beto

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual
Outstanding and exercisat Warrants Exercise Prict Life
January 1, 201 5,405,600 $ 1.57 2.4t
Issuec - - -
Expired/forfeitec (232 31.7¢ -
Exercisec (700,739 1.1¢ -
December 31, 201 4,704,631 1.61 1.41
Issuec - - -
Expired/forfeitec - - -
Exercised (3,876,06) 1.4% -
December 31, 201 828,57: 2.3¢ 2.0€
Issuec 2,575,001 5.0¢ -
Expired/forfeitec (40,000 3.9¢ -
Exercised (28,500 2.85 -
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2014 3,335,07 $ 4.4k 0.9¢

The estimated fair value of stock-based awardal@utated using the Blac&eholes option pricing model, even though this rhade developed-
estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fullgrisferable options without vesting restrictionkjcl differ significantly from our stock optionsh& Black-
Scholes model also requires subjective assumptiocisiding future stock price volatility and expedttime to exercise, which greatly affect the calad
values. The expected term and forfeiture rate tibop granted is derived from historical data orpkayee exercises and post-vesting employment
termination behavior, as well as expected behaasutstanding options and warrants. The risk+fade is based on the U.S. Treasury rates in afiging
the corresponding period of grant. The expectedtility is based on the historical volatility of ostock price. These factors could change in theréy
which would affect fair values of stock optionsmped in such future periods, and could cause Vityaiti the total amount of the stock-based compéing

expense reported in future periods.
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Outstanding Warrants to Purchase
Common Stock as of December 31, 2C

Expiration
Description Issue Datce Exercise Prict Shares Date
August 2009 Employee Warrar 8/25/200¢ $ 0.5C 80,00( 8/25/201!
2007 Debt Extension Warrar 9/22/201( $ 1.0C 16,00( 9/22/201!
December 2010 Employee Warra 12/3/201( $ 1.65 200,00t 12/3/201!
February 2011 Legal Advisor Warre 2/22/201: $ 2.5C 80,00( 2/22/201t
March 2011 Investor Warrar 3/9/201: $ 3.1¢ 349,97: 3/9/201¢
March 2011 Investor Warrar 4/7/201: $ 3.1¢ 34,10( 4/7/201¢
May 2014 Agent Warrar 5/15/201: $ 5.0¢ 75,00( 11/15/201!
May 2014 Investor Warrant 5/15/201: $ 5.0¢ 2,500,001 11/15/201!
Total Warrants Outstandir 3,335,07.
10. Commitments and Contingencies

Indemnities and Guarantees

We have agreed to indemnify each of our executifieens and directors for certain events or ocawes arising as a result of the officer or
director serving in such capacity. The term ofitttemnification period is for the officer’s or dater’s lifetime. The maximum potential amount ofute
payments we could be required to make under timelgarinification agreements is unlimited. However haee a directors’ and officers’ liability insuranc
policy that should enable us to recover a portibfuture amounts paid. As a result of our insurapakicy coverage, we believe the estimated faingaif
these indemnification agreements is minimal andhaxee no liabilities recorded for these agreementsf ®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013.

We enter into indemnification provisions under agreements with other companies in the ordinaryseoaf business, typically with business
partners, contractors, customers and landlordsetihése provisions we generally indemnify and taldnless the indemnified party for losses suffened
incurred by the indemnified party as a result af activities or, in some cases, as a result oftlemnified party’s activities under the agreem@&hese
indemnification provisions often include indemnéimns relating to representations made by us reiglard to intellectual property rights. These
indemnification provisions generally survive teration of the underlying agreement. The maximum mitgeamount of future payments we could be
required to make under these indemnification piorssis unlimited. We have not incurred materiatsdo defend lawsuits or settle claims relateithése
indemnification agreements. As a result, we belibeeestimated fair value of these agreementsngmai. Accordingly, we have no liabilities recordieal
these indemnification provisions as of December2®14 and 2013.

Non-Recurring Engineering Development Costs

On February 4, 2011, we ente red into an AnalogdeDevelopment Agreement with an effective dat@asfuary 24, 2010 (the “NN1001
Agreement”) with Texas Instruments (“TI") pursuamtwhich Tl integrated Neonode’s intellectual prdpento an Application Specific Integrated Circuit
(“ASIC") developed by TI. The NN1001 ASIC only che sold by TI exclusively to licensees of Neonddieder the terms of the NN1001 Agreement, we
will reimburse Tl up to $500,000 of non-recurrimpéeering (“NRE”) development costs based on skipsiof the NN1001. Under the terms of the
NN1001 Agreement, we will reimburse Tl an NRE fé&@.08 per unit for each of the first one millionits sold and $0.05 for the next eight millionta
sold. During the years ended December 31, 201£2ah8, approximately $93,000 and $387,000, respelgtf NRE expense related to the NN1001
Agreement is included in research and developnmettits condensed consolidated statements of opesafilirough December 31, 2014, we made total
payments of approximately $419,000 under the NN1&greement and there is approximately $61,000 dediin our accrued expenses as of Decemb
2014. No amounts were recorded in the year endedrblger 31, 2012 because no shipments occurredgdiaan period.

On April 25, 2013, we entered into an additionabkig Device Development Agreement with an effectiage of December 6, 2012 (thHeN1002
Agreement”) with TI pursuant to which TI will integfe our intellectual property into an ASIC devedby TI. The NN1002 ASIC only can be sold by TI
exclusively to licensees of Neonode. Under the sesfithe NN1002 Agreement, we will reimburse Tltai$500,000 of NRE costs based on shipments of
the NN1002. Under the terms of the NN1002 Agreementvill reimburse Tl an NRE fee of $0.25 per voiteach of the first two million units sold. The
NN1002 is currently in development and has not relrased to mass production. Through Decembe2(®H4, we had made no payments unde
NN1002 Agreemen
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Operating Leases
We lease 3,185 square feet of office space loat2850 Mission College Blvd, Suite 190, Santa &1&A 95054 USA. The annual payment for
this space equates to approximately $86,000 per Ya&s lease is valid through July 31, 2015. We @arrrently searching for alternative office spaearby
our current location.
Our subsidiary Neonode Technologies AB leases 6s§2@re feet of office space located at Storgas&h Stockholm, Sweden. The annual
payment for this space equates to approximatel3 $80 per year including property tax (excluding™AThis lease is valid through November 30, 2017.
The lease can be extended on a yearly basis.

Our subsidiary Neonode Japan Inc. leases 430 stpetref office space located at 608 Bureau Shiwagd-1-6 Konan, Minato-ku, 108-0075
Tokyo, Japan. This lease is valid through Octolie2B16. The annual expense for this space is ajppately $28,000 per year.

Our subsidiary Neonode Korea Ltd. entered intcaadeagreement located at B-1807, Daesung D-PdBs15Seoul , South Korea in January,
2015. This lease is valid through February 13, 20h& annual expense for this space is approxign&gt,000 per year.

We believe our existing facilities are in good citiot and suitable for the conduct of our business.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 artj @@lrecorded approximately $633,000, $556,0006d0@,000, respectively, for rent
expense.

A summary of future minimum payments under mamcellable operating lease commitments as of Dieeefil, 2014 is as follows (in thousanc

Years ending December & Total
2015 $ 53¢
2016 48¢
2017 41C
$ 1,437

Equipment Subject to Capital Lease

In April 2014, we entered into a lease for cergpcialized milling equipment. Under the termshef lease agreement we are obligated to pur
the equipment at the end of the original 6 yeasddarm for 10% of the original purchase pricenef@quipment. In accordance with relevant accogntin
guidance the lease is classified as a capital |§deelease payments and depreciation period begdaly 1, 2014 when the equipment went into setvic
The equipment will be amortized to research aneldgment expense on a straight line basis oveafsya the rate of approximately $20,000 per quarte
The interest rate of the lease is 4% per annum.

The following is a schedule of minimum future rdsitan the non-cancelable capital lease as of DeeeBth 2014 (in thousands):

Year ending December 3 Total

2015 $ 79

2016 79

2017 79

2018 79

2019 79
Thereaftel 86

Total minimum payments require 481
Less amount representing intere g53)
Present value of net minimum lease payme 42¢
Less current portio g61)

$ 367

The following is a schedule of equipment under éiease as of December 31, 2014 (in thousa

Equipment under capital lea $ 45¢

Less: accumulated depreciation (39

Net book value $ 424
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11. Segment Information

Our Company has one reportable segment, whichnipdeed of the touch technology licensing busin@#iof our sales for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were to custdoeated in the U.S., Europe and Asia. Of our tataets, 85% and 90% were held in the U.S. as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 19d.8% were held in Sweden, respectively.

The following table presents net revenues by geatgcaegion for the years ended December 31, 22043 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):

2014
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 2,83: 60%
Net revenue from customers in Eurc 22¢ 5%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,67¢ 35%
Total $ 4,74( 100(%
2013
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 1,89¢ 51%
Net revenues from customers in Eurt 30¢ 9%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,561% 40%
Total $ 3,717 10(%
2012
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 5,17¢ 73%
Net revenues from customers in Eurt 153 2%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,80¢ 25%
Total $ 7,137 100(%

12. Income Taxes

Loss before provision for income taxes was distedigeographically for the years ended Decembeasfgllows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Domestic $ (13,99) $ (12,87) $ (10,287
Foreign (228) (94 1,121
Total $ (14,22) $ (12,97) $ (9,162)
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The provision for income taxes is as follows fog ffears ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012

Current

Federa $ - % - 3 =

State 3 2 2

Foreign 10 107 12¢
Change in deferre

Federa (4,214 (3,799 (3,659

Federal valuation allowan: 4,214 3,79¢ 3,65

State (460) 12¢ 452

State valuation allowant 46C (129 (45%)

Foreign 64 111 27€

Foreign valuation allowanc (64) (112) (27€)
Total curren $ 13 $ 10 $ 12t

The differences between our effective income téx aad the U.S. federal statutory federal incomaaée for the years ended December 31, are:

2014 2013 2012
Amounts at statutory tax rat 34% 34% 34%
Foreign losses taxed at different re ()% -- 1%
Stocl-based compensatic (2)% ()% (7%
Other (1)% (1)% --
Total 3C% 3C% 28%
Valuation allowance (31)% (31)% (29)%
Effective tax rate (1)% (1)% (1)%

Significant components of the deferred tax assletnioas at December 31 are as follows (in thousands)
2014 2013

Deferred tax asset
Accruals $ 1,05 $ 1,51¢
Stock compensatic 1,21C 1,07¢
Net operating losse 14,68 9,76(
Total deferred tax asse $ 16,94 $ 12,34¢
Basis difference in fixed asse 2 (24)
Valuation allowance (16,946 (12,339
Total net deferred tax assets $ - $ --

Valuation allowances are recorded to offset cedeiierred tax assets due to management’s uncertdintalizing the benefits of these items.
Management applies a full valuation allowance lfi@r accumulated losses of Neonode Inc., and itsdialiss, since it is not determinable using thefen
likely than not” criteria that there will be anytéwe benefit of our deferred tax assets. This iginaue to our history of operating losses. ADecember
31, 2014, we had federal, state and foreign neiatipg losses of $41.7 million, $16.1 million an@, $espectively. The federal loss carryforward hedo
expire in 2028, the California loss carryforwardjims to expire in 2020 and the foreign loss camyfod is indefinite.

Utilization of the net operating loss and tax crediryforwards is subject to an annual limitatéhre to the ownership percentage change
limitations provided by Section 382 of the InterRalvenue Code and similar state provisions. Theardmitation may result in the expiration of thet
operating losses and tax credit carryforwards leefititization. As of December 31, 2014, we hadawhpleted the determination of the amount to be
limited under the provision.

As of December 31, 2014, we did not recognize ¥8BBand $27,000 of federal and state deferreddsets relating to excess tax benefits for

stock-based compensation deductions. Unrecognigedirdd tax benefits will be accounted for as d@itte additional paida capital when realized throu
a reduction in income taxes payable.

54




We follow the provisions of accounting guidance ethincludes a two-step approach to recognizingedegnizing and measuring uncertain tax
positions accounted for in accordance with accogrguidance. There were no unrecognized tax berfefithe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012.

We follow the policy to classify accrued interestigpenalties as part of the accrued tax liabititshie provision for income taxes. For the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 we dicenognize any interest or penalties related to wgeized tax benefits.

Our continuing practice is to recognize interest/anpenalties related to income tax matters ioine tax expense. As of December 31, 2014 and
2013, we had no accrued interest and penaltiegdefa uncertain tax matters.

As of December 31, 2014, we had no uncertain taxipas that would be reduced as a result of aelafpshe applicable statute of limitations.

Payments related to the license agreement with Songoration are net of 10% income tax withholdisgrequired by the Japanese government
under the Sweden and Japan international tax tréatyamounts withheld may be used to offset fupargables for income tax in Sweden. In the years
ended December 21, 2014, 2013 and 2012, $0, $42/808123,000 was withheld, respectively.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdittion, California, Sweden, Japan and South Kdrha 1999 through 2013 tax years are open
and may be subject to potential examination inanmore jurisdictions. We are not currently undey gederal, state or foreign income tax examination

13. Employee Benefit Plans

We participate in a number of individual definechttdoution pension plans for our employees in Swedée contribute five percent (5%) of the
employee’s annual salary to these pension planstriBations relating to these defined contributmans for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d.3 a
2012 were $249,000, $184,000 and $139,500, respéctWe match U.S. employee contributions to akd@tirement plan up to a maximum of six percent
(6%) of an employee’s annual salary. Contributiaating to the matching 401k contributions for yfears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 wer:
$81,000, $66,000 and $27,000, respectively.
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14. Net Loss per Share

Basic net loss per common share for the years ebdedmber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was computed/iajnd) the net loss by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstgmidiring the year. Diluted loss per common shaosisputed by dividing net loss by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock and corstochk equivalents outstanding during the year.

Potential common stock equivalents of approximaieBymillion, 0.8 million and 4.7 million outstamdj stock warrants, 11,000, 11,000 and 52
shares issuable upon conversion of preferred s&gER00, 1.6 million and 1.7 million stock opticaa®e excluded from the diluted earnings per share
calculation for the years ended December 31, 22043 and 2012, respectively, due to their antitilidueffect.

(In thousands, except per share amot

Years ended December !

BASIC AND DILUTED
Weighted average number of common shares outsig

Net loss

Net loss per shares basic and dilt

15. Quarterly Financial Information

2014
Net revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross margir
Net loss
Net loss per basic and diluted common sl

2013
Net revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross margir
Net loss
Net loss per basic and diluted common sl

2012
Net revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross margir
Net loss
Net loss per basic and diluted common sl

2014 2013 2012
39,53: 35,26¢ 33,00:

$ (14,23) $ (13,080 $ (9,287

$ (0.3 $ (0.37) $ (0.2§)

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, June 30 September 3(  December 31

$

(unaudited, in thousands except per share amc

1,01 $ 865 $ 1,126 $ 1,73
16€ 452 42z 46¢
84¢ 417 704 1,26¢
(4,009) (3,879 (3,24) (3,107
.11 $ 0.10 $ 0.05) $ (0.09)
548 $ 1,08 $ 1,07¢  $ 1,00¢
16 662 765 19¢
532 42z 311 81C
(3,570) (3,120 (3,349 (3,047)
.11 $ .09 $ 0.09 $ (0.09)
1,16¢ $ 1,97 $ 1,67¢ $ 2,32(
24¢ 494 337 38E
91£ 1,48 1,34z 1,93
(1,589 (3,42)) (2,149 (2,129)
0.09 $ 0.10 $ 0.0 $ (0.07)

Quarterly and year-tdate computations of per share amounts are madpéndently. Therefore, the sum of per share amdointse quarters m:

not agree with the per share amounts for the year.

16. Subsequent Events

On January 9, 2015, we incorporated the subsidiagnode Taiwan Ltd.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision of and with the participaidrour management, including our Chief Executifd®r and Chief Financial Officer, we
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsamnd procedures (as such term is defined insRiBa-15(e) and 1585(e) under the Exchange Act) a:
December 31, 2014. Based upon that evaluationChiaf Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiancluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective because of the nahte@eaknesses in our internal control over findmeporting described below.

Notwithstanding the ineffectiveness of our Compardisclosure controls and procedures as of Dece&ihet014, our management believes that
the consolidated financial statements and othanfifal information contained in this Annual Regangsent fairly, in all material respects, our figiah
condition results of operations and cash flowsfaara for, the dates and periods presented.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@aorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal oardver financial reporting has been designedrtwiple reasonable assurance with respect to the
reliability of financial reporting and the presetida of financial statements for external purpaseasccordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A control system, no matter how webigaed and operated, can provide only reasonatgbsolute, assurance that the control system’s
objectives will be met. Further, the design of atoml system must reflect the fact that there asdurce constraints. Because of the inherent liiits.in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls pesvide absolute assurance that all control isanesinstances of fraud, if any, within our Compaaye
been detected.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiaffiodr, our management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcéporting as of December 31, 2014. In makingrthesessment, our management used criteria ebdlis
in the framework ornternal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgditins of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Based upon that assessment, our manageamahided that our internal control over financegorting was not effective at the reasonable
assurance level as of December 31, 2014 becatbe ofaterial weaknesses in our internal controt éimancial reporting described below.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finarigieporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the pany’s annual or interim financial statements wit be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

During the audit of our consolidated financial staénts for the year ended December 31, 2014, marggeletermined that we had material
weaknesses in our quarterly and annual finanaielecprocesses relating to intercompany adjustnaetgccounting for complex transactions.

There were no changes in our internal control éwencial reporting during the quarter ended Decen®i, 2014 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, oureimtal control over financial reporting.

Management has worked, and continues to workrémgthen our internal control over financial repgt We are committed to designing,
implementing and operating effective controls. €mediate our Company’s material weaknesses imiaiteontrol over financial reporting, our planned
steps include:

. engaging additional external resources with putiimpany accounting and reporting experience torasehaur policies and procedures,
including those related to complex accounting issaad
. preparing additional written policies and procedu accounting and financial reporting to esttbh formal process to close our books

account for all transaction
Management will periodically assess the progresssaifficiency of the ongoing initiatives and makiustments as and when necessary.
KMJ Corbin & Company LLP, our independent registigpeblic accounting firm, has audited our consaéddinancial statements and the

effectiveness of our internal control over finahcéporting as of December 31, 2014. Their repartte consolidated financial statements appeatssn
Annual Report in Item 8 on Form 10-K and their nemm the effectiveness of our internal control iofil@ancial reporting appears below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Neonode Inc

We have audited the internal control over finanéglorting of Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries (therfpany”) as of December 31, 2014, based on
criteria established internal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company’s management is responsiblmédntaining effective internal control over fingaeporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting, included in the accompanying Managemefitisual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the Company'’s internal control over finahcgporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight@Bd&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivea@lteontrol over financial reporting was maintaine
all material respects. Our audit of internal cohtneer financial reporting included obtaining ardenstanding of internal control over financial repa,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etdsts)g and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on that résid
performing such other procedures as we considexegssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with ac@ogrinciples generally accepted in the Unitedet @i
America. A company’s internal control over finadaigporting includes those policies and procedthias (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions of the assetseofampany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pempiaration of financial statements in accordanck adétounting principles generally accepted in thédd
States of America, and that receipts and experaditof the company are being made only in accordaitbeauthorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assuragegding prevention or timely detection of unauttext acquisition, use, or disposition of the conypan
assets that could have a material effect on tlenial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations, internal cointver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inad&gbecause of changes in conditions, or thategece
of compliance with the policies or procedures metedorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combamatif deficiencies, in internal control over finalaeporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of a conyfmannual or interim financial statements wilt he prevented or detected on a timely basis. Two
material weaknesses were identified and includedanagement’s assessment related to controls lweparterly and annual financial close process
surrounding intercompany adjustments and contnads accounting for complex transactions. These ni@ht@eaknesses were considered in determinin
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applieduoaudit in the 2014 consolidated financial stents.

In our opinion, because of the effects of the abueationed material weaknesses on the achieverhéim objectives of the control criteria,
Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries did not maintaim/limaterial respects, effective internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2014ghkzor
criteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Our opinion on the effectiveness of intecwatrol over financial reporting does not affear opinion on the consolidated financial statement

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Neonode Inc. and subsidiarie@scember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the relatecbtidated statements of operations, comprehensive
loss, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for eafctine years in the three-year period ended DeceBhe2014 and our report dated March 12, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion on those condelitiinancial statements.

/s/ KMJ Corbin & Company LL}

Costa Mesa, California
March 12, 2015
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item will be inded in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@UHual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11 . EXECUTIVE CO MPENSATION

The information required by this Item will be inded in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@Uual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEF ICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this Item will be inded in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@UHual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED T RANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item will be indied in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@UHual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item will be indled in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@tual Meeting of Stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the registare listed in the index to the consolidatedriicial statements and filed under Item 8 of this
Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules
All financial statement schedules are omitted bsedhe relevant information is not applicable drpresent in amounts sufficient to require

submission of the schedule or the required infoionat shown in the consolidated financial statet®@amd the notes thereto included in this Annugldre
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Exhibits

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNeonode Inc., dated April 17, 200incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22
the registran’s quarterly report on Form -Q filed on August 4, 2009 (file nc-08419))

3.11 Certificate of Amendment, dated December 13, 2(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 of tegistran’s annual report ol
Form 1(-K filed on March 31, 2011 (file no-08419))

3.1.2 Certificate of Amendment, dated March 18, 20:incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of theis&gn(' s current report on Form-K
filed on March 28, 2011 (file no-08419))

3.1.3 Certificate of Correction, dated February 28, 2Qincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 of thgistran’s annual report on Forr
10-K filed on March 30, 2012 (file no-08419))

3.2 Bylaws, as amended through December 5, 2(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of theiségnt's annual report on Form -K
filed on April 15, 2008 (file n0.-08419))

4.1 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rightke Series A and Series B Preferred Stock dasmber 29, 2008iricorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registr's current report on Form-K filed on December 31, 2008 (file n-08419))

4.2 Certificate of Increase of Designation of SerieBrBferred Stock dated January 2, 200®¢rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the
registran’s quarterly report on Form -Q filed on October 31, 2011 (file nc-08419))

4.3 Certificate of Increase of Designation of SerieBrBferred Stock dated January 28, 2002 ¢rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the
registran’s quarterly report on Form ’-Q filed on October 31, 2011 (file nc-08419))

10.1 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 9, 2@ieb(porated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thgis&rant’s current report on Form
8-K filed on May 12, 2014 (file no-35526))

10.2 Registration Rights Agreemenincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thgis&rant’s current report on Form 8-filed on May 12
2014 (file no. -35526))

10.3 Investor Warrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of thgis&rant s current report on Form-K, as amended, filed on May !
2014 (file no. -35526))

10.4 Agent Warrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thgiserant's current report on Form-K, as amended, filed on May !
2014 (file no. -35526))

10.5 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warraincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of tegistran’s annual report on Form -K
filed on March 31, 2011 (file no-08419))

10.6 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warraincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thgise&ran’s annual report on Form -K
filed on March 14, 2013 (file no-35526))

10.7 Employment Agreement of Thomas Eriksson, dated M&r@014 (ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thgis&rant’s current
report on Form -K filed on March 11, 2014 (file no-35526)) +

10.8 Employment Agreement of Lars Lindqvist, dated Audgys2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thgiserant’s current
report on Form -K filed on August 6, 2014 (file nc-35526)) +

10.9 Consulting Agreement of Per Bystedt, dated JanR8r2011 (ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of thgistrant’'s annual
report on Form 1-K filed on March 31, 2011 (file no-08419)) +

10.10 Employment Agreement of David W. Brunton, datedy Jyl2010 (ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of thgiserant’'s annual
report on Form 1-K filed on March 14, 2013 (file no-35526)) +

10.11 Separation Agreement of David Brunton, dated Au§u&014 (ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thgis&rant’s current
report on Form -K filed on August 6, 2014 (file nc-35526)) +

10.12 Consulting Agreement of David Brunton, dated Audys2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of thgiserant's current
report on Form -K, as amended, filed on August 6, 2014 (file -35526))

10.13 Neonode Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as ameffincorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of thgis&ranf s registration stateme
on Form &8 filed on November 22, 2013 (file no. -192505))

10.14 Form of Option used in connection with the 2006 iBguncentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of thgis&an’s
annual report on Form 1K filed on March 14, 2013 (file no-35526))

21 Subsidiaries of the registra

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act Of 200z

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act Of 200z

32 Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1280adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rlkes-Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or ger@ent
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&(tH)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regidgthas duly caused this report to be signe
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly aigbd.

NEONODE INC.
(Registrant,

Date: March 12, 2015 By: /sl Lars Lindgvis
Lars Lindgvist
Chief Financial Officer,
Vice President, Finance, Treasurer
and Secretar

Pursuant to the requirements for the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934, this report has been signedéydllowing persons on behalf of the regist
and in the capacity and dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Thomas Eriksso Chief Executive Officer, and Direct: March 12, 201!
Thomas Eriksso (Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Lars Lindgvis Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Finar March 12, 201!
Lars Lindqgvist Treasurer and Secrete

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/sl Per Bystec Chairman of the Board of Directc March 12, 201!
Per Bysted

/s/ John Reardao Director March 12, 201!
John Reardo

/s/ Mats Dahlir Director March 12, 201!
Mats Dahlin

/sl Per Lofgrer Director March 12, 201!

Per Lofgrer
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRAN T

Exhibit 21

Name Jurisdiction
Neonode Technologies A Sweder
Neno User Interface Solutions # Sweder
Neonode Japan In Japar
Neonode Americas In u.s.

NEON Technology Inc u.sS.
Neonode Korea Ltc South Koree
Neonode Taiwan Ltc Taiwan



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos 333-192505, 333-179313;15846, 333-132713, 333-114161, 333-87828,
333-63228, 333-43532, 333-32896, 333-65767, 33FB333-45998 and 33-59167 on Form S-8 and Redatr&tatement Nos 333-196441, 333-196426,
333-177726, 333-153634, 333-152163 and 333-1474F0om S-3 of our reports dated March 12, 201%tirgd to the consolidated financial statements of

Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries and the effectiveoietfee Compar’s internal control over financial reporting appegrin this Annual Report on Form 10-
of Neonode Inc. for the year ended December 314201

/s/ KMJ Corbin & Company LLP

Costa Mesa, California

March 12, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas Eriksson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKldfNeonode Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesmunwtéeh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects th
financial condition, results of operations and cfeivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipgesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer ainare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) armdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this rep@being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaditsclosure controls and procedures and presenthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in théstegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’'s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has ma#lyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelgal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons pariog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finandietmation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2015

/s/ Thomas Eriksso
Thomas Eriksso
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lars Lindqvist certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKldfNeonode Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notato any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesmunwtieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects th
financial condition, results of operations and cfeivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipgesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer ainare responsible for establishing and maintaiiisglosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) armdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this rep@being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaditsclosure controls and procedures and presenthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in théstegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’'s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal ¢feaiin the case of an annual report) that has ma#lyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelgal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic#l reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons pariog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finandietmation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2015

/s/ Lars Lindqvis

Lars Lindqgvist

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasu
Finance and Secreta




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Neonode (tiee “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yearded December 31, 2014 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Repdh8 ,undersigned principal executive officer anah@pal financial officer of the Company, each hgreb
certify, solely for purposes of 18 U.S.C. Secti@5Q, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBasOxley Act of 2002, that to our knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftion 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended,;
2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operation of the Compe

/s/ Thomas Eriksso
Thomas Eriksso
Chief Executive Office
March 12, 2015

/s/ Lars Lindqvis

Lars Lindqgvist

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President Finan
Treasurer and Secretary

March 12, 201!

This certification is not deemed filed with the Béies and Exchange Commission and is not to berjporated by reference into any filing of the Camp

under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,eoB#turities Act of 1934, as amended, whether inefidee or after the date of the Report, irrespexti
any general incorporation language contained infstiting.



